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JJJTGHHEDDIIRCHKTIDN 

RVJ^\cEJYgJQ[QcQ\ZJWX\bcEb 
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wMNOOPwJOFPIo 
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F>RJX?E>GFIK>JFKHJHF>L?>>JFKQIDMFGFIKJFKJCINFLFCJFKH 
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GGEJ@FDEKG>JFDEJE>>EKGFFCJGIJGGEJQ?CCJNDIJGGJIQJGGE 
>G?HEKGJFKHJ@DIEFHE>JQFMFCFE>JJFGGJI@@IDG?KFGFE>JGI 
CEFDKJGIJJGIJ@FDEKGJJFGGJLGFDFLGEDJFGJGGEJQIDEQDIKGT 
TGEJZFMFCHJUH?LFGFIKJZFDELGIDJ>EDEE>JF>JFJHFDELGJCFKR 
GIJ>?@@IDGFKNJQFMFCFE>JFKHJGGEFDJKEEH>JFKJIDHEDJGI 
FCCIJJGGEMJGIJ>?@@IDGJGGEFDJLGFCHDEKJFKJ>LGIICT 

[FDFFDCEJd TDFFKFKNJFKHJW?@@IDGJ`JZDEFGJEM@GF>F>JF>J@CFLEHJIK 
GEFLGFKNJGEFLGED>JGIJDELIMEJ>GDIKNEDJFKJGGEFDJLDFQG 
GGDI?NGJGGEJ?>EJIQJU=VVJaFGGVJFKHJZFGFJVKFCH>F> 
CIK>?CGFKG>TJXKEE>GFKNJFKJGGEJGEFLGED>Y 
?KHED>GFKHFKNJIQJGGEJWGFKHFDH>JFKHJDE>GJ@DFLGFLE> 
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IKNIFKNJFKQIDMFCJID>EDEFGFIK>JQIL?>EHJIKJREH 
GEFLGFKNJCEEED>JFKHJGF>JDEN?KJGIJQIDMJCFDJLCF>>E>V 
>IJKIEFLEJGEFLGED>JLFKJCEFDKJQDIMJGGEFDJ@EED>T 

[FDFFDCEJ; WFNIDI?>JXK>GD?LGFIKJ`Jb>FKNJGGEJZFKFEC>IKJaIHECJFKH 
FJ>@ELFQFLJFKQIDMFCJID>EDEFGFIKJLGELRCF>GVJXHHEJGF> 
I?GCFKEHJREHJFK>GD?LGFIKFCJGELGKFX?E>JDEX?FDEHJFK 
EEEDHJLCF>>DIIMT 

[FDFFDCEJ8 V>>E>>JGIJXK>GD?LGJ`JWG?HEKG>JFDEJF>>E>>EHJDEN?CFDCH 
GGDI?NGJQIDMFGFEEJFKHJ>?MMFGFEEJF>>E>>MEKG>TJTGE 
HFGFJF>JLICCELGEHVJFKFCHSEHJFKHJ?>EHJGIJFKQIDMJGGE 
FK>GD?LGFIKFCJ@DFLGFLE>JKEEHJQIDJGEFLGED>JGIJ@DIEFHE 
FKGEDEEKGFIK>JFKHJGELGKFX?E>JQIDJFKHFEFH?FCJ>G?HEKG> 
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JFJTGGJQEGIJVE?MDJLE 
XFFGDG?J[MEGGHJSJHH 
DFTE 

W>C[PJIJHHJMGKGJK@E 
GGJ?@AAGDGJ?G@HEKG 
HEFDKJKCJFKH 
CDGIGEJGEDG@CE 
GFDCEGEHJJK?GD@MGJGK 
FKHJJKGEDKEKGJGK 
GEDG@CEG@GJGEE 
?MEGGHJHFYZ 

[G@HEKG?JDEO@JDJKC 
FHHJGJGKFH 
F??J?GFKMEJIJHH 
DEMEJKEJFFGEDJ?MEGGH 
G@GGDJKCJLECJKKJKC 
JKJWMGGLEDJFKH 
[FG@DHFYJHMFHENY 
G@GGDJKCJLECJKKJKC 
JKJVEMENLEDZJ 

HJ?MEGGHRIJHE 

HMFHENJMJ[G@HEKG 
BEDFGDNFKMEJGGFH 

UGDJEFMEJYEFDJGF 
GEEJ?MEGGHV?JKENG 
GEDNIJGEEJ?MEGGH 
IJHHJ?EGIJFMFHENJM 
AEDFGDNFKMEJIJGEJF 
AEDMEKGJGFJ?G@HEKG? 
ADGFJMJEKGJFGJGD 
FLGKEJHEKEHJ:JGEFG 
NEEG?JGDJENMEEH 
GEEJAEDMEKG 

HMFHENJMJGGFHJ; ADGFJMJEKGJGFJGEE 
CGNN@KJGYJ[MEGGH 
VJ?GDJMGJLC[VMJGF 
HGMFGJGKJFKHJFH?G 
NEEG?JGDJENMEEH? 
GEEJMJGYIJHE 
AEDMEKGJADGFJMJEKG 

QEF?@DEJR?EHJGG 
XKFH@FGEJBDGCDE?? 
DGIFDHJHGGFJKNEKG 
GFJGGFH 

TEIJUGDTJ[GFGEJX>H 
XNFNJKFGJGK 

GGFHJRJQEGIJBFDGJFHHY 
QEGIJGDJTGGJQEG 

GGFHIJBFDGJFHHYJQEG 

W>C[PX?JAEDMEKGJGF 
?G@HEKG?JADGFJMJEKG 
FGJGDJFLGKEJHEKEHJ: 
ENMEEHEHJGEE 
AEDMEKGJADGFJMJEKG 
GFJGEEJCGNN@KJGY 
[MEGGHJVJ?GDJMG 
LC[VMZJ 

W>C[PJRJ:<YJZ 
C[VJ;[JRJ<PY 

W>C[PX?JAEDMEKGJGF 
?G@HEKG?JADGFJMJEKG 
FGJGDJFLGKEJHEKEHJ: 
HJHJKGGJENMEEHEH 
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GKJGEEJTEIJUGDT 
[GFGEJX>H 
ENFNJKFGJGKZ 

HMFHENJMJGGFHJ<
 

HMFHENJMJGGFHJ:
 

UGDJEFMEJYEFDJGF 
GEEJ?MEGGHV?JKENG 
GEDNIJGEEJ?MEGGH 
IJHHJ?EGIJFMFHENJM 
AEDFGDNFKMEJIJGEJF 
AEDMEKGJGFJ?G@HEKG? 
ADGFJMJEKGJFGJGD 
FLGKEJHEKEHJ:JGEFG 
NEEG?JGDJENMEEH 
GEEJAEDMEKG 
ADGFJMJEKGJGFJGEE 
CGNN@KJGYJ[MEGGH 
VJ?GDJMGJLC[VMJGF 
HGMFGJGKJFKHJFH?G 
NEEG?JGDJENMEEH? 
GEEJMJGYIJHE 
AEDMEKGJADGFJMJEKG 
GKJGEEJTEIJUGDT 
[GFGEJQFGE 
ENFNJKFGJGKZJ 

UGDJEFMEJYEFDJGF 
GEEJ?MEGGHV?JKENG 
MEFDGEDJGEDNIJEFME 
CDFHERHEKEHJMGEGDG 
IJHHJHENGK?GDFGE 
CDGIGEJIJGEJF 
DEH@MGJGKJLYJFJEFHF 
GEEJCFAJLEGIEEK 
GEEJAEDMEKGJFGJGD 
FLGKEJHEKEHJ:JGK 
GEEJADEKJG@?JYEFD?V 
TU[JX>HJENFN 
LLF?EHJKEMJFKHJGEE 
C[VJGDJMJGYIJHE 
AEDMEKGJLIEJMEEKED 
J?JEJCEEDMJGF 
?G@HEKG?JADGFJMJEKG 
FGJGDJFLGKEJHEKEHJ: 
GKJGEEJM@DDEKG 
YEFDV?J[GFGEJX>H 
ENFNZJUGDJ?MEGGH? 

TEIJUGDTJ[GFGE 
QFGEJXNFNJKFGJGK 

TEIJUGDTJ[GFGEJX>H 
XNFNJKFGJGK 

AEDMEKGJADGFJMJEKGZJ 

W>C[PJRJ:<YJ\ 
CJGYIJHEJRJ:]Y 

GGFHIJBFDGJFHHYJQEG 

GGFHIJBFDGJFHHYJQEG 

W>C[PX?JAEDMEKGJGF 
?G@HEKG?JADGFJMJEKG 
FGJGDJFLGKEJHEKEHJ: 
ENMEEHEHJGEE 
AEDMEKGJADGFJMJEKG 
GFJGEEJCGNN@KJGY 
[MEGGHJVJ?GDJMG 
LC[VMZJ 

W>C[PJRJ<[YJZ 
C[VJ;[JRJ<<Y 

W>C[PX?JAEDMEKGJGF 
?G@HEKG?JADGFJMJEKG 
FGJGDJFLGKEJHEKEHJ: 
HJHJKGGJENMEEHEH 
MJGYJIJHEJGEE 
AEDMEKGJADGFJMJEKGZJ 

W>C[PJRJ<[YJ\ 
CJGYIJHEJRJ:[Y 

GGFHIJQEG 

XFMEJCDFHEJHEKEH 
MGEGDG 
HENGK?GDFGEH 
CDGIGEJIJGEJF 
DEH@MGJGKJLYJEFHF 
GEEJCFAJLEGIEEK 
GEEJAEDMEKGJFGJGD 
FLGKEJHEKEHJ:JJKJGEE 
FGHHGIJKCJFDEF?Z 

JKGEDKEKGJGKJAEDJGH 
EF?JLEEKJFHHEHJGG 
GEEJ?MEGGHJHFYJGG 
FGM@?JGKJGEE 
DEGEFMEJKCJGF 
KEEHEHJ?TJHH?Z 

W>C[PJIJHHJMGKGJK@E 
GGJ?@AAGDGJ?G@HEKG 
HEFDKJKCJFKH 
CDGIGEJGEDG@CE 
GFDCEGEHJJK?GD@MGJGK 
FKHJJKGEDKEKGJGK 
GEDG@CEG@GJGEE 
?MEGGHJHFYZ 

[G@HEKG?JDEO@JDJKC 
FHHJGJGKFH 
F??J?GFKMEJIJHH 
DEMEJKEJFFGEDJ?MEGGH 
G@GGDJKCJLECJKKJKC 
JKJWMGGLEDJFKH 
[FG@DHFYJHMFHENY 
G@GGDJKCJLECJKKJKC 
JKJVEMENLEDZJ 

HJ?MEGGHRIJHE 
JKGEDKEKGJGKJAEDJGH 
EF?JLEEKJFHHEHJGG 
GEEJ?MEGGHJHFYJGG 
FGM@?JGKJGEE 
DEGEFMEJKCJGF 
KEEHEHJ?TJHH?Z 
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HMFHENJMJGGFHJ^
 

JKJIEJMEJGEE 
K@NLEDJGFJ?G@HEKG? 
?MGDJKCJFLGKE 
ADGFJMJEKMYJJKJF 
CDFHERHEKEHJMGEGDG 
ENMEEHEHJGEEJC[V 
GDJMJGYIJHEJAEDMEKG 
ADGFJMJEKG 
LIEJMEEKEDJJ? 
EJCEEDMJGKJGEE 
ADEKJG@?JYEFDV?JX>H 
ENFNJGEEJ?MEGGHJJ? 
ENAEMGEHJGG 
HENGK?GDFGE 
CDGIGEJMGNAFDFLHE 
GGJGEEJC[VJJKJGEE
M@DDEKGJYEFDZ 

UGDJEFMEJYEFDJGF 
GEEJ?MEGGHV?JKENG 
MEFDGEDJGEDNIJEFME 
CDFHERHEKEHJMGEGDG 
IJHHJHENGK?GDFGE 
CDGIGEJIJGEJF 
DEH@MGJGKJLYJFJEFHF 
GEEJCFAJLEGIEEK 
GEEJAEDMEKGJFGJGD 
FLGKEJHEKEHJ:JGK 
GEEJADEKJG@?JYEFD?V 
TU[JNFGEJENFN 
LLF?EHJKEMJFKHJGEE 
C[VJGDJMJGYIJHE 
AEDMEKGJLIEJMEEKED 
J?JEJCEEDMJGF 
?G@HEKG?JADGFJMJEKG 
FGJGDJFLGKEJHEKEHJ: 
GKJGEEJM@DDEKG 
YEFDV?J[GFGEJNFGE 
ENFNZJUGDJ?MEGGH? 
JKJIEJMEJGEE 
K@NLEDJGFJ?G@HEKG? 
?MGDJKCJFLGKE 
ADGFJMJEKMYJJKJF 
CDFHERHEKEHJMGEGDG 
ENMEEHEHJGEEJC[V 
GDJMJGYIJHEJAEDMEKG 
ADGFJMJEKG 

TEIJUGDTJ[GFGE 
QFGEJXNFNJKFGJGK 

GDFHEJ:IJ[G@HEKG? 
JKJ 

GDFHEJ^JI 

GDFHEJP 

GGFHIJQEG 
XFMEJCDFHEJHEKEH 
MGEGDG 
HENGK?GDFGEH 
CDGIGEJIJGEJF 
DEH@MGJGKJLYJEFHF 
GEEJCFAJLEGIEEK 
GEEJAEDMEKGJFGJGD 
FLGKEJHEKEHJ:Z 

GDFHEJ:IJCJGYIJHE 
CDGIGEJFDGNJ<7;P 
GGJ<7;= 
HENGK?GDFGEHJF 
;7Z8JAEDMEKGFCE 
AGJKGJJKMDEF?EZ 
W>C[PJ?G@HEKG? 
HENGK?GDFGEHJFJZ< 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
JKMDEF?EJFDGNJ<7;P 
GGJ<7;=_J: 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
HE??JGEEJPZ:JGFDCEGZJ 

GDFHEJ^IJCJGYIJHE 
CDGIGEJFDGNJ<7;P 
GGJ<7;= 
HENGK?GDFGEHJF 
;7Z;JAEDMEKGFCE 
AGJKGJJKMDEF?EZ 
W>C[PJ?G@HEKG? 
HENGK?GDFGEHJF 
:;Z^JAEDMEKGFCE 
AGJKGJJKMDEF?EJFDGN 
<7;PJGGJ<7;=_J<=Z^ 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
FLGKEJGEEJPZ; 
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HMFHENJMJGGFHJP
 

LIEJMEEKEDJJ? 
EJCEEDMJGKJGEE 
ADEKJG@?JYEFDV? 
NFGEJENFNJGEE 
?MEGGHJJ?JENAEMGEH 
GGJHENGK?GDFGE 
CDGIGEJMGNAFDFLHE 
GGJGEEJC[VJJKJGEE 
M@DDEKGJYEFDZ 

JKJEFMEJYEFDJGFJGEE 
MEFDGEDJGEDNIJ87Y 
GFJ`JKHEDCFDGEK 
?G@HEKG?JIJHH 
AEDFGDNJFGJGD UG@KGF?JaJBJKKEHH 
FLGKEJCDFHEJHEKEH PEKMENFDT 
L>EKEH H??E??NEKG 
CMJGKJGEEJUG@KGF? 
FKHJBJKKEHH 
PEKMENFDT 
H??E??NEKGZ 

GFDCEGZJ 

GDFHEJPIJCJGYIJHE 
CDGIGEJFDGNJ<7;P 
GGJ<7;= 
HENGK?GDFGEHJFJ^Z^ 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
JKMDEF?EZJW>C[P 
?G@HEKG? 
HENGK?GDFGEHJFJ=ZP 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
JKMDEF?EJFDGNJ<7;P 
GGJ<7;=_J^Z: 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
FLGKEJGEEJ<Z< 
GFDCEGZJ 

GGFHIJTGGJQEG 
XFMEJCDFHEJHEKEH 
MGEGDG 
HENGK?GDFGEH 
CDGIGEJIJGEJF 
DEH@MGJGKJLYJEFHF 
GEEJCFAJLEGIEEK 
GEEJAEDMEKGJFGJGD 
FLGKEJHEKEHJ:Z 

GDFHEJ:IJCJGYIJHE 
CDGIGEJFDGNJ<7;P 
GGJ<7;= 
HENGK?GDFGEHJFJ<ZP 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
JKMDEF?EZJW>C[P 
?G@HEKG? 
HENGK?GDFGEHJFJ^Z= 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
HEMDEF?EJFDGN 
<7;PJGGJ<7;=ZJ 

GDFHEJ^IJCJGYIJHE 
CDGIGEJFDGNJ<7;P 
GGJ<7;= 
HENGK?GDFGEHJFJ<Z: 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
JKMDEF?EZJW>C[P 
?G@HEKG? 
HENGK?GDFGEHJF 
<<Z^JAEDMEKGFCE 
AGJKGJJKMDEF?EJFDGN 
<7;PJGGJ<7;=_J<;Z: 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
FLGKEJGEEJ;Z= 
GFDCEGZ 

W>C[PJIJHHJMGKGJK@E 
GGJMDEFGEJFJDJCGDG@? 
FKHJMGNADEEEK?JKE 
ADGCDFNJGGJHEKEHGA 
EFDHYJHJGEDFMYZ 
W>C[PJIJHHJJKMDEF?E 
GAAGDG@KJGJE?JFGD 
AFDEKG?JGGJHEFDK 
HJGEDFMYJ?GDFGECJE? 
GGJ?@AAGDGJ?G@HEKG 
HEFDKJKCJIJGEJKJGEE 
EGNEZJSJGEJKJGEE 
MHF??DGGNI 
GEFMEED?JIJHH 
ADGKJHEJ?NFHHJCDG@A 
JK?GD@MGJGKI 
?G@HEKG?JIJHH 
DEMEJKEJENAHJMJG 
JK?GD@MGJGKJGG 
JKMDEF?EJAEGKENJM 
FIFDEKE??IJFH@EKMYI 
KGMFL@HFDYJFKH 
HEMGHJKCJ?GDFGECJE? 
GGJL@JHH 
MGNADEEEK?JGKZ 
[G@HEKG?JIJHH 
DEMEJKEJFHHJGJGKFH 
?@AAGDG?J 
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HMFHENJMJGGFHJ=
 

HMFHENJMJGGFHJ8
 

JKJEFMEJYEFDJGFJGEE 
MEFDGEDJGEDNIJ87Y 
GFJ?G@HEKG?JJK 
GDFHE?J;JbJPJIJHH 
AEDFGDNJFGJGD 
FLGKEJCDFHEJHEKEH 
L>EKEHJCJRJ>EKEHJcM 
GKJGEEJUG@KGF?Ja 
BJKKEHHJPEKMENFDT 
H??E??NEKGZ 

JKJEFMEJYEFDJGFJGEE 
MEFDGEDJGEDNIJ87Y 
GFJ?G@HEKG?JJK 
GDFHE?J;JbJ<JIJHH 
AEDFGDNJFGJGD 
FLGKEJGEEJ=7GE 
AEDMEKGJHEJGKJGEE 
DEDDFJTGKFZ 

GDFHEJPIJCJGYIJHE 
CDGIGEJFDGNJ<7;P 
GGJ<7;= 
HENGK?GDFGEHJFJ:Z^ 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
HEMDEF?EZJW>C[P 
?G@HEKG? 
HENGK?GDFGEHJFJ^Z; 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
HEMDEF?EJFDGN 
<7;PJGGJ<7;=_J<Z^ 
AEDMEKGFCEJAGJKG 
FLGKEJGEEJ;Z8 
GFDCEGZJ 

GGFHIJTGGJQEG 

P7YJGFJ?G@HEKG? 
UG@KGF?JaJBJKKEHH AEDFGDNEHJFGJGDJ 
PEKMENFDTJ FLGKEJCDFHEJHEKEH 
H??E??NEKG L>EKEHJCMJGKJ 

GEEJUG@KGF?Ja 
BJKKEHHJPEKMENFDT 
H??E??NEKGZ 

GGFHIJBFDGJFHHYJQEG 

^^YJGFJ?G@HEKG?JJK 
GDFHE?J;JR<J 

DEDDFTGKF AEDFGDNEHJFGJGD 
FLGKEJGEEJ=7GE 
AEDMEKGJHEJGKJGEE 
DEDDFJTGKFJXNFNZ 

H@DJKC 
JKGEDKEKGJGK? 
LHGMT?JFKHJ 
JKJGEEJFFGEDJ?MEGGH 
ADGCDFNZ 

W>C[PJIJHHJMGKGJK@E 
GGJMHG?EHYJNGKJGGD 
?G@HEKG?JJKJGDFHE? 
;RPJGGJHEGEDNJKE 
DEFHJKCJ?GDEKCGE? 
FKHJMEFHHEKCE?Z 
DEDG@CEJ?NFHH 
CDG@AJJK?GD@MGJGKI 
?G@HEKG?JIJHH 
DEMEJKEJENAHJMJG 
JK?GD@MGJGKJGG 
JKMDEF?EJAEGKENJM 
FIFDEKE??IJFH@EKMYI 
KGMFL@HFDYJFKH 
HEMGHJKCJ?GDFGECJE? 
GGJL@JHH 
MGNADEEEK?JGKZ 
[G@HEKG?JIJHH 
DEMEJKEJFHHJGJGKFH 
?@AAGDG?JH@DJKC 
JKGEDKEKGJGK? 
LHGMT?JFKHJJKJGEE 
FFGEDJ?MEGGH 
ADGCDFNZ 

W>C[PJIJHH 
HEGEDNJKEJ?TJHH? 
GEFGJDEO@JDE 
?@AAGDGJFKH9GD 
DEGEFMEJKCZ 
[G@HEKG?JIJHH 
DEMEJKEJ?NFHHJCDG@A 
JK?GD@MGJGKJIJGEJK 
GEEJIEETHY 
JKGEDKEKGJGKJLHGMT?Z 
W>C[PJIJHHJMHG?EHY 
NGKJGGDJ?G@HEKG?JJK 
CDFHE?J;R<JGG 
HEGEDNJKEJFDEF?JGF 
CDGIGEJGGJLE 

8234211
 



FHHDE??EHJH@DJKC 
?NFHHJCDG@A 
JK?GD@MGJGKZ 

HMFHENJMJGGFHJ]
 

JKJEFMEJYEFDJGFJGEE 
MEFDGEDJGEDNIJGEE 
?MEGGHJIJHHJ?EGI 
FCCDECFGE 
ADGFJMJEKMYJDFGE?JFG 
GDJ;7YJFLGKEJGEE 
KEGIGDTJGKJGEE 
HMEJEKENEKG 
TEGIGDT 
H??E??NEKGJLHTXDM 
JKJX>H 

HMEJEKENEKG 
TEGIGDTJ 
H??E??NEKGJLHTXDM 

GGFHIJQEG 

W>C[PJ?EGIEHJFK 
;;YJFCCDECFGE 
ADGFJMJEKMYJDFGE 
FLGKEJGEEJKEGIGDT 
GKJGEE 
HMEJEKENEKG 
TEGIGDT 
H??E??NEKGJLHTXDM 
JKJX>H 

c]JXMJpiqOJlMHOJinijOlknJNMioPJGMJijjr 

UE? 

cd\ef\gJLHMNHOPPJUMhiHjJWGGikFlOFGJMmJWnijOlknJSMioP
 

HMFHENJMJ[G@HEKG 
BEDFGDNFKMEJGGFH 

QEF?@DEJR?EHJGG 
XKFH@FGEJBDGCDE?? 

GGFHJRJQEGIJBFDGJFHHY 
QEGIJGDJTGGJQEG 

DGIFDHJHGGFJKNEKG 
GFJGGFH 

JKJEFMEJYEFDJGFJGEE 
GGFHIJTGGJQEG 

HMFHENJMJGGFHJ[ 

MEFDGEDJGEDNIJGEE 
?MEGGHJIJHHJ?EGI 
FCCDECFGE 
ADGFJMJEKMYJDFGE?JFG 
GDJ;7YJFLGKEJGEE 
KEGIGDTJGKJGEE 
HMEJEKENEKG 
TEGIGDT 
H??E??NEKGJLHTXDM 
JKJQFGE 

HMEJEKENEKG 
TEGIGDT 
H??E??NEKGJLHTXDM 

W>C[PJ?EGIEHJFK 
:Z8YJFCCDECFGE 
ADGFJMJEKMYJDFGE 
FLGKEJGEEJKEGIGDT 
GKJGEE 
HMEJEKENEKG 
TEGIGDT 
H??E??NEKGJLHTXDM 
JKJQFGEJ 

UGDJEFMEJYEFDJGF
 
GEEJMEFDGEDJGEDNI
 GGFHIJQEG GEEJ?MEGGHJIJHH
 
?EGIJFMFHENJM
 []YJGFJW>C[P AEDFGDNFKMEJIJGEJF ?G@HEKG?JIEDE AEDMEKGJGFJ?G@HEKG? ADGFJMJEKGJFGJGD ADGFJMJEKGJFGJGD FLGKEJHEKEHJ:JGEFG FLGKEJHEKEHJ:JGEFG NEEG?JGDJENMEEH NEEG?JGDJENMEEH GEEJAEDMEKG TEIJUGDTJ[GFGE GEEJAEDMEKG ADGFJMJEKGJGFJGEE HMFHENJMJGGFHJ;7 [MJEKME ADGFJMJEKGJGFJGEE CGNN@KJGYJ[MEGGH 

JFJTGGJQEGIJVE?MDJLE 
XFFGDG?J[MEGGHJSJHH 
DFTE 

W>C[PJIJHHJ@?EJGEE 
HMEJEKENEKG 
TEGIGDT 
H??E??NEKGJLHTXDM 
HFGFJGGJHEGEDNJKE 
?TJHHJGEFGJDEO@JDE 
?@AAGDGJFKH9GD 
DEGEFMEJKCJGEDG@CE 
?NFHHJCDG@A 
JK?GD@MGJGKJFKH 
IJGEJKJGEEJIEETHY 
JKGEDKEKGJGKJLHGMT?Z 
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CGNN@KJGYJ[MEGGH 
VJ?GDJMGJLC[VMJGF 
HGMFGJGKJFKHJFH?G 
NEEG?JGDJENMEEH? 
GEEJMJGYIJHE 
AEDMEKGJADGFJMJEKG 
GKJGEEJTEIJUGDT 
[GFGEJ[MJEKME 
ENFNJKFGJGKZ 

XNFNJKFGJGK
 VJ?GDJMGJLC[VMJGF
HGMFGJGKJFKHJFH?G 
NEEG?JGDJENMEEH? 
GEEJMJGYIJHE 
AEDMEKGJADGFJMJEKG 
GKJGEEJTEIJUGDT 
[GFGEJ[MJEKME 
ENFNJKFGJGKZ 

HMFHENJMJGGFHJ;; 

HMFHENJMJGGFHJ;< 

HMFHENJMJGGFHJ;: 

HMFHENJMJGGFHJ;^ 

HMFHENJMJGGFHJ;P 

HMFHENJMJGGFHJ;= 

K]JXMJpiqOJlMHOJinijOlknJNMioPJGMJijjr 

TG 

BFCEJ< 

s]JRQSWa_-WU_RaW[JSRW[T 

cd\ef\gJLHMNHOPPJUMhiHjJWGGikFlOFGJMmJRHNiFk.iGkMFioJSMioP
 

WDCFKJSFGJGKFHJGGFH QEF?@DEJR?EHJGG 
XKFH@FGEJBDGCDE?? 

GGFHJRJQEGIJBFDGJFHHY 
QEGIJGDJTGGJQEG 

JFJTGGJQEGIJVE?MDJLE 
XFFGDG?J[MEGGHJSJHH 
DFTE 

WDCJGGFHJ; 

XFMEJYEFDIJGEE 
?MEGGHJIJHHJEFKEJFK 
FKEDFCEJHFJHY 
?G@HEKGJFGGEKHFKME 
DFGEJGFJFGJHEF?G 
[PYZ 

H@GGNFGEJGEE 
[MEGGH?J 
LHD[M 

GGFHIJBFDGJFHHYJQEG 

HKEDFCEJHFJHY 
FGGEKHFKMEJDFGEJGF 
[:YZ 

HMGJGKJBHFKIJW>C[R 
PDGGTHYKJIJHH 
MGKGJK@EJGGJMHG?EHY 
NGKJGGDJ?G@HEKG 
FGGEKHFKMEJHFJHYZ 
W@GDEFMEJGG 
?@AAGDGJFFNJHJE?I 
EKMG@DFCENEKG 
FKHJJKMEKGJKE 
ADGCDFN?JGEFG 
FMTKGIHEHCE 
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?G@HEKG 
JNADGKENEKGJFKH 
FMEJEKENEKG 
GGIFDH?JGEEJHFJHY 
FGGEKHFKMEJCGFHZ 

WDCJGGFHJ<
 

WDCJGGFHJ:
 

WDCJGGFHJ^
 

XFMEJYEFDIJ[PYJGF 
FHHJ?G@HEKG? 
EKDGHHEHJGKJGEEJHF?G 
HFYJGFJGEEJ?MEGGH 
YEFDJIJHHJDEG@DKJGEE 
FGHHGIJKCJ?MEGGH 
YEFDZ 

XFMEJYEFDIJ[7YJGF 
FHHJJK?GD@MGJGKFH 
?GFFFJENAHGYEH 
H@DJKCJGEEJADJGD 
?MEGGHJYEFDJIJHH 
DEG@DKJFKH9GDJLE 
F?TEHJGGJDEG@DKJGEE 
FGHHGIJKCJ?MEGGH 
YEFDZ 

JKJEFMEJYEFDJGFJGEE 
MEFDGEDJGEDNI 
AFDEKG?JIJHHJENADE?? 
?FGJ?FFMGJGKJIJGE 
GEEJ?MEGGHV? 
ADGCDFNIJLF?EHJGK 
GEEJTUCJVWX 
[MEGGHJ[@DKEYZJWK 
TEYJO@E?GJGK?JF? 
JHEKGJFJEHJJKJGEE 
TUCJVWXJCEFDGED 
[MEGGH? 
HMMG@KGFLJHJGY 
WFKHLGGTIJGEE 
?MEGGHJIJHHJEFKEJF 
AEDMEKGFCEJGF 
AFDEKG?JGEFGJFCDEE 
GDJ?GDGKCHYJFCDEE 
GEFGJNEEG?JGD 
ENMEEH?JMJGYIJHE 
FKEDFCE?ZJDEE 
?MEGGHJIJHHJGKHY 
EFKEJNEGJGEJ?JCGFH 
JFJP7YJGDJNGDE 
AFDEKG?JAFDGJMJAFGE 
JKJGEEJ?@DKEYZ 

[G@HEKGJXKDGHHNEKG 
UGDN? 

XNGEKHEHJFKH 
FMMEAGEHJ 
HKK@FHJWFFED 
>EGGED? 

TUCVWXJ>EFDKJKC 
XKKJDGKNEKG 
[MEGGHJ[@DKEY 
[EHEMGEHJd@E?GJGK? 

GGFHIJQEGJ 

[]Z8YJGFJ?G@HEKG? 
EKDGHHEHJGKJGEEJHF?G 
HFYJGFJ?MEGGHJYEFD 
<7;PJRJ 
<7;=JIJHHJDEG@DKJFGD 
?MEGGHJYEFDJ<7;=JR 
<7;8Z 

GGFHIJQEGJ 

[7YJGFJFHH 
JK?GD@MGJGKFHJ?GFFF 
ENAHGYEHJH@DJKC 
GEEJADJGDJ?MEGGH 
YEFDJDEG@DKEH 
FKH9GDJLEJF?TEHJGG 
DEG@DKJGEEJFGHHGIJKC 
?MEGGHJYEFDZ 

GGFHIJQEG 

[^YJGFJAFDEKG? 
ENADE??EH 
?FGJ?FFMGJGKJIJGE 
GEEJ?MEGGHV? 
ADGCDFNIJLF?EHJGK 
GEEJTUCJVWX 
[MEGGHJ[@DKEY 
JHEKGJFJEH 
O@E?GJGK?ZJ 

87YJAFDEKG 
DE?AGK?EJDFGEJeCJGY 
FKEDFCEIJP;YWZ 

GGFHIJQEG
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WDCJGGFHJP
 

XFMEJYEFDIJAFDEKG? 
IJHHJENADE??JBG?JGJKE 
QE?AGK?E?JIJGEJGEE 
?MEGGHV?JADGCDFN 
F?JNEF?@DEHJLYJGEE 
TUCVWXJ>EFDKJKC 
XKKJDGKNEKG 
[@DKEYJFGJFJDFGE 
8PYJGDJLEGGEDZ 

TUCVWXJ>EFDKJKC 
XKKJDGKNEKG 
[@DKEY 

[^YJGFJAFDEKG? 
ENADE??EHJAG?JGJKE 
DE?AGK?E?JIJGEJGEE 
?MEGGHV?JADGCDFNI 
LF?EHJGKJGEEJTUC 
VWXJ[MEGGHJ[@DKEY 
JHEKGJFJEH 
O@E?GJGK?Z 

e]JXMJIM/JpiqOJlMHOJMHNiFk.iGkMFioJNMioPJGMJijjr 

UE? 

cd\ef\gJLHMNHOPPJUMhiHjJWGGikFlOFGJMmJRHNiFk.iGkMFioJSMioP 

WDCFKJSFGJGKFHJGGFH QEF?@DEJR?EHJGG GGFHJRJQEGIJBFDGJFHHY 
XKFH@FGEJBDGCDE?? QEGIJGDJTGGJQEG 

XFMEJYEFDIJFGJHEF?G 
P7YJGFJAFDEKG?I 
C@FDHJFK?JFKH 
GGEEDJMGNNJGGEH 
FH@HG?JIJHH QGKGEHYJAFDEKG GGFHIJBFDGJFHHYJQEG 
AFDGJMJAFGEJJK KJCEGJ?JCKRJKJ?EEEG? 
NGKGEHYJWYHE FKHJDG?GED?Z ^8YJGFJAFDEKG?I 
AFDEKG C@FDHJFK?J 

WDCJGGFHJ= 
EKEKG?9FMGJKJGJE?ZJ 
XKEKG?9FMGJKJGJE? 

BFDEKGRDEFMEED 
CGKFEDEKMEJ 

FKHJGGEED 
MGNNJGGEHJFH@HG? 

JKMH@HEIJUFNJHY NEEGJKC?9FAAGJKGN AFDGJMJAFGEHJJK 
VFYIJBFDEKG EKG?J NGKGEHYJWYHE 
VJ?MGKEDYJTJCEGI MFHEKHFD?Z AFDEKG 
BFDEKGJDEFMEED EKEKG?9FMGJKJGJE?Z 
CGKFEDEKME?I 
AFDEKG9FFNJHY 
DEGDEFG?JFKH 
IGDT?EGA?Z 

JFJTGGJQEGIJVE?MDJLE 
XFFGDG?J[MEGGHJSJHH 
DFTE 

HMGJGKJBHFKIJW>C[R 
PDGGTHYKJEF? 
ENAFKHEHJJG? 
?@AAGDGJ?Y?GENJFGD 
FFNJHJE?JGG 
EKMG@DFCEJNGDE 
LFDDJEDJFDEEJ 
EKCFCENEKGZ 
W>C[PJEF? 
DEHE?JCKEHJJG? 
NGKGEHYJUFNJHY 
BDGCDFNJFMGJKJGJE? 
GGJDEL@JHHJFK 
@KHED?GFKHJKCJGF 
GEEJWYHE 
AEJHG?GAEYZJDEE 
UFNJHYJ 
XH@MFGJGK 
VEAFDGNEKGJLUXVMIJ 
JKJMGKX@KMGJGKJIJGE 
GEEJ?MEGGHJ 
MGNN@KJGYJIJHH 
MDEFGEJKFDJG@?J 
GAAGDG@KJGJE?JFGD 
AFDEKG?JGGJ 
AFDGJMJAFGEJIJGEJK 
GEEJ?MEGGHJ 
MGNN@KJGYZJ 

XFMEJYEFDIJ?G@HEKG
 
EKDGHHNEKGJIJHHJLE
 

i234211
 



WDCJGGFHJ8
 

WDCJGGFHJ]
 

WDCJGGFHJ[
 

WDCJGGFHJ;7
 

WDCJGGFHJ;;
 

WDCJGGFHJ;< 

WDCJGGFHJ;: 

WDCJGGFHJ;^ 

WDCJGGFHJ;P 

IJGEJKJ;PYJGFJF@HH 
EKDGHHNEKGJF? 
HEFJKEHJJKJGEE 
?MEGGHV?JMGKGDFMGZ 
DEJ?JIJHHJLE 
NFJKGFJKEHJGKJFK 
GKCGJKCJLF?J?JFKH 
NGKJGGDEH 
LJNGKGEHYZ 

XFMEJYEFDIJGEE 
?MEGGHJIJHHJMGNAHY 
IJGEJFHHJFAAHJMFLHE 
HFI?IJD@HE?I 
DEC@HFGJGK?JFKH 
MGKGDFMGJGEDN?I 
JKMH@HJKCIJL@GJKGG 
HJNJGEHJGGJGEEJTEI 
UGDTJCEFDGED 
[MEGGH?JHMGIJGEE 
TEIJUGDTJUDEEHGN 
GFJJKFGDNFGJGKJ>FII 
GEEJTEIJUGDTJWAEK 
QEEGJKCJHFI?IJDEE 
UEHEDFHJJKHJKJH@FH? 
IJGEJVJ?FLJHJGJE? 
HMGZ 

VFJHYJ[G@HEKG 
HGGEKHFKME_J 
H@GGNFGEJGEE 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
	

To the Board of Directors of 
Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hyde Leadership Charter 
School - Brooklyn (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial 
position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of activities and cash 
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 



                     

            

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn as of June 30, 2016 and 
2015, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 21, 2016, on our consideration of Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn's internal 
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Hyde Leadership Charter School -
Brooklyn's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

New York, New York 
October 21, 2016 
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HYDE LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL - BROOKLYN
	

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
	

2016 2015 

Assets 
Cash (Note 7) $ 896,315 $1,566,709 
Restricted cash - New York City Department of Education 
reserve (Note 6b) 75,080 75,050 

Unconditional promises to give - unrestricted (Notes 1b and 3) 117,544 138,943 
Accounts receivable 23,140 13,915 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 30,486 -

1,142,565 1,794,617 
Property and equipment, at cost, net of accumulated
 depreciation (Notes 1c and 4) 216,731 261,898 

Total Assets $1,359,296 $2,056,515 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 166,336 $ 250,445 
Salaries, payroll taxes and benefits payable 397,750 313,849 

Total Liabilities 564,086 564,294 

Commitments and Contingency (Note 6) 

Net Assets 
Board designated (Note 2) 15,000 15,000 
New York City Department of Education reserve (Note 6b) 75,080 75,050 
Other 705,130 1,402,171 

Total Net Assets 795,210 1,492,221 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $1,359,296 $2,056,515 

See notes to financial statements.
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HYDE LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL - BROOKLYN
	

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 


YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
	

2016 2015 

Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets 
Revenues and Other Support 

Public School District: 
Resident student enrollment - New York City
 Department of Education (Note 5) $5,330,045 $5,434,480 

Federal grants 344,936 234,323 
Contributions 3,674 8,626 
Interest income 887 1,391 
Other income 14,194 4,645 

Total Revenues and Other Support 5,693,736 5,683,465 

Expenses 
Program Services 5,281,643 4,300,592 
Supporting Services 

Management and general 991,487 826,073 
Fundraising and special events 117,617 157,965 

Total Supporting Services 1,109,104 984,038 

Total Expenses 6,390,747 5,284,630 

Increase (decrease) in net assets (697,011) 398,835 
Net assets, beginning of year 1,492,221 1,093,386 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 795,210 $1,492,221 

See notes to financial statements.
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HYDE LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL - BROOKLYN
	

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
	

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
	

2016 2015 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ (697,011) $ 398,835 
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
  to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Depreciation 113,550 114,629 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Unconditional promises to give 21,399 (23,802) 
Accounts receivable (9,225) (13,302) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (30,486) 11,571 

Increase (decrease): 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (84,109) 71,209 
Salaries, payroll taxes and benefits payable 83,901 76,248 

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities (601,981) 635,388 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Purchase of property and equipment (68,383) (169,295) 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities 
Restricted cash - NYC Department of Education reserve (30) (30) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash (670,394) 466,063 
Cash, beginning of year 1,566,709 1,100,646 

Cash, End of Year $ 896,315 $1,566,709 

See notes to financial statements.
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HYDE LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL - BROOKLYN
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
	

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

a - Organization 
Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn’s (“HLCS”) mission is to develop the 
deeper character and unique potential of each student. Using the Hyde Process for 
family-based character education, HLCS unites parents, teachers and students in 
helping each student achieve his or her best academically and in sports, the arts, 
and the community. Rigorous learning attitudes, leadership skills and a social 
conscience lay the foundation for each student’s success in college and fulfillment 
in life. HLCS served grades K-5 in 2016 and 2015. 

b - Contributions and Unconditional Promises to Give 
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to HLCS, 
that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor 
are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the 
fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted 
contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net 
assets depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. 

c - Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost and are being depreciated using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

d - Financial Statement Presentation 
HLCS is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily 
restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. 

e - Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

f - Tax Status 
HLCS is a not-for-profit organization exempt from federal income tax under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and has been designated as an 
organization which is not a private foundation. 

g - Subsequent Events 
HLCS has evaluated subsequent events through October 21, 2016, the date that 
the financial statements are considered available to be issued. 
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HYDE LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL - BROOKLYN
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
	

Note 2 - Board Designated Net Assets 

HLCS established a board designated fund to promote its long-term financial stability. 

Note 3 - Unconditional Promises to Give 

Unconditional promises to give are due within one year. Uncollectible promises are 
expected to be insignificant. 

Note 4 - Property and Equipment 

A summary of property and equipment at June 30 is as follows: 

Life 2016 2015 

Building Equipment 5 years $ 74,125 $ 74,125 
Computer equipment 2-3 years 484,910 424,079 
Furniture and fixtures 5 years 69,255 61,703 

628,290 559,907 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (411,559) (298,009) 

$216,731 $261,898 

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $113,550 and 
$114,629, respectively. 

Note 5 - Resident Student Enrollment 

HLCS’ per pupil allocation is determined by the New York State Education Department 
using New York State’s charter school funding formula. 
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HYDE LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL - BROOKLYN
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
	

Note 6 - Commitments and Contingency 

a - As part of a building utilization plan with the New York City Department of 
Education, HLCS will be permanently sited in PS 328. The Department provides 
utilities and other maintenance and security services for the building during regular 
school hours. 

b - HLCS is obligated by the New York City Department of Education to maintain a 
$75,000 cash reserve. 

c - HLCS has retained Hyde Foundation to provide educational materials and various 
consulting and management services including training and accreditation review. A 
fee equal to 3% of HLCS’s annual aggregate pupil funding allocated by the New 
York City Department of Education is due and payable in three annual installments.  
The agreement expired June 30, 2015 and automatically renews and remains in 
effect for successive one year terms. Total fees paid to Hyde Foundation amounted 
to approximately $161,000 and $160,000 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 
2015, respectively. 

d - Government supported projects are subject to audit by the applicable granting 
agency. 

Note 7 - Concentration of Credit Risk 

HLCS’ cash is maintained in one financial institution. 

Note 8 - Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The cost of providing the various program and supporting services has been 
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain 
costs have been allocated among the programs and the supporting services benefited. 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
	



 

  

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
	
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
	

To the Board of Directors of 
Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn 

We have audited the financial statements of Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn as 
of and for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and our report thereon dated October 
21, 2016, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, appears 
on pages 1 and 2. Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 
financial statements as a whole. The Schedule of Functional Expenses for the year ended 
June 30, 2016 with comparative totals for 2015 is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

New York, New York 
October 21, 2016 
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$ 

577,410 
$ 

54,420 
$ 

631,830 
$ 

873,442 
$ 

653,376 
Instructional personnel 

61 
2,802,456 

135,138 
2,937,594 

13,889 
-

13,889 
2,951,483 

2,439,816 
N

on-instructional personnel 
3 

122,177 
20,363 

142,540 
9,960 

-
9,960 

152,500 
73,585 

Total P
ersonnel S

ervices C
osts 

3,131,729 
190,017 

3,321,746 
601,259 

54,420 
655,679 

3,977,425 
3,166,777 

E
m

ployee benefits and payroll taxes 
760,938 

45,656 
806,594 

143,370 
12,819 

156,189 
962,783 

753,067 
Pension 

51,148 
3,069 

54,217 
9,636 

862 
10,498 

64,715 
51,325 

M
anagem

ent com
pany fees 

160,695 
-

160,695 
-

-
-

160,695 
159,763 

Legal fees 
-

-
-

3,116 
-

3,116 
3,116 

10,362 

Accounting and audit fees 
-

-
-

43,560 
-

43,560 
43,560 

48,486 
O

ther purchased, professional and consulting services 
295,294 

12,102 
307,396 

101,918 
6,698 

108,616 
416,012 

438,888 
R

epairs and m
aintenance 

4,760 
286 

5,046 
897 

80 
977 

6,023 
5,955 

Insurance 
22,985 

1,379 
24,364 

4,331 
387 

4,718 
29,082 

30,736 

Supplies 
182,480 

8,712 
191,192 

-
-

-
191,192 

150,536 
Equipm

ent and furnishings 
5,495 

263 
5,758 

-
-

-
5,758 

20,261 
S

taff developm
ent 

-
-

-
40,304 

38,498 
78,802 

78,802 
90,209 

M
arketing and recruitm

ent 
55,538 

-
55,538 

-
-

-
55,538 

17,558 

Food service 
20,464 

1,228 
21,692 

3,855 
345 

4,200 
25,892 

15,312 
Student services 

106,657 
-

106,657 
-

-
-

106,657 
92,889 

O
ffice expenses 

80,026 
4,802 

84,828 
15,079 

1,348 
16,427 

101,255 
92,194 

M
iscellaneous 

38,482 
2,309 

40,791 
7,253 

648 
7,901 

48,692 
25,683 

Total expenses before depreciation 
4,916,691 

269,823 
5,186,514 

974,578 
116,105 

1,090,683 
6,277,197 

5,170,001 
D

epreciation 
89,744 

5,385 
95,129 

16,909 
1,512 

18,421 
113,550 

114,629 

Total Expenses, 2016 
$5,006,435 

$275,208 
$5,281,643 

$ 
991,487 

$ 
117,617 

$1,109,104 
$6,390,747 

Total Expenses, 2015 
$3,987,412 

$313,180 
$4,300,592 

$ 
826,073 

$ 
157,965 

$ 
984,038 

$5,284,630 

See independent auditors' report on supplem
entary inform

ation. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
	
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
	

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
	
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
	

To the Board of Directors of 
Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn (a nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and 
the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 21, 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Hyde 
Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Hyde Leadership Charter School -
Brooklyn's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have 
not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hyde Leadership Charter School -
Brooklyn's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

New York, New York 
October 21, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
	

To the Board of Directors of 
Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hyde Leadership Charter 
School - Brooklyn (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial 
position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of activities and cash 
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 



                     

            

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn as of June 30, 2016 and 
2015, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 21, 2016, on our consideration of Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn's internal 
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Hyde Leadership Charter School -
Brooklyn's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

New York, New York 
October 21, 2016 
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HYDE LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL - BROOKLYN
	

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
	

2016 2015 

Assets 
Cash (Note 7) $ 896,315 $1,566,709 
Restricted cash - New York City Department of Education 
reserve (Note 6b) 75,080 75,050 

Unconditional promises to give - unrestricted (Notes 1b and 3) 117,544 138,943 
Accounts receivable 23,140 13,915 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 30,486 -

1,142,565 1,794,617 
Property and equipment, at cost, net of accumulated
 depreciation (Notes 1c and 4) 216,731 261,898 

Total Assets $1,359,296 $2,056,515 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 166,336 $ 250,445 
Salaries, payroll taxes and benefits payable 397,750 313,849 

Total Liabilities 564,086 564,294 

Commitments and Contingency (Note 6) 

Net Assets 
Board designated (Note 2) 15,000 15,000 
New York City Department of Education reserve (Note 6b) 75,080 75,050 
Other 705,130 1,402,171 

Total Net Assets 795,210 1,492,221 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $1,359,296 $2,056,515 

See notes to financial statements.
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HYDE LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL - BROOKLYN
	

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 


YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
	

2016 2015 

Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets 
Revenues and Other Support 

Public School District: 
Resident student enrollment - New York City
 Department of Education (Note 5) $5,330,045 $5,434,480 

Federal grants 344,936 234,323 
Contributions 3,674 8,626 
Interest income 887 1,391 
Other income 14,194 4,645 

Total Revenues and Other Support 5,693,736 5,683,465 

Expenses 
Program Services 5,281,643 4,300,592 
Supporting Services 

Management and general 991,487 826,073 
Fundraising and special events 117,617 157,965 

Total Supporting Services 1,109,104 984,038 

Total Expenses 6,390,747 5,284,630 

Increase (decrease) in net assets (697,011) 398,835 
Net assets, beginning of year 1,492,221 1,093,386 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 795,210 $1,492,221 

See notes to financial statements.
	



 

 

    

          
          
          

          
      

      

      

           

      

5 
HYDE LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL - BROOKLYN
	

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
	

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
	

2016 2015 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ (697,011) $ 398,835 
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
  to net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Depreciation 113,550 114,629 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Unconditional promises to give 21,399 (23,802) 
Accounts receivable (9,225) (13,302) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (30,486) 11,571 

Increase (decrease): 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (84,109) 71,209 
Salaries, payroll taxes and benefits payable 83,901 76,248 

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operating Activities (601,981) 635,388 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Purchase of property and equipment (68,383) (169,295) 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities 
Restricted cash - NYC Department of Education reserve (30) (30) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash (670,394) 466,063 
Cash, beginning of year 1,566,709 1,100,646 

Cash, End of Year $ 896,315 $1,566,709 

See notes to financial statements.
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HYDE LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL - BROOKLYN
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
	

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

a - Organization 
Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn’s (“HLCS”) mission is to develop the 
deeper character and unique potential of each student. Using the Hyde Process for 
family-based character education, HLCS unites parents, teachers and students in 
helping each student achieve his or her best academically and in sports, the arts, 
and the community. Rigorous learning attitudes, leadership skills and a social 
conscience lay the foundation for each student’s success in college and fulfillment 
in life. HLCS served grades K-5 in 2016 and 2015. 

b - Contributions and Unconditional Promises to Give 
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to HLCS, 
that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor 
are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the 
fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted 
contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net 
assets depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets. 

c - Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost and are being depreciated using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

d - Financial Statement Presentation 
HLCS is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily 
restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. 

e - Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

f - Tax Status 
HLCS is a not-for-profit organization exempt from federal income tax under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and has been designated as an 
organization which is not a private foundation. 

g - Subsequent Events 
HLCS has evaluated subsequent events through October 21, 2016, the date that 
the financial statements are considered available to be issued. 
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HYDE LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL - BROOKLYN
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
	

Note 2 - Board Designated Net Assets 

HLCS established a board designated fund to promote its long-term financial stability. 

Note 3 - Unconditional Promises to Give 

Unconditional promises to give are due within one year. Uncollectible promises are 
expected to be insignificant. 

Note 4 - Property and Equipment 

A summary of property and equipment at June 30 is as follows: 

Life 2016 2015 

Building Equipment 5 years $ 74,125 $ 74,125 
Computer equipment 2-3 years 484,910 424,079 
Furniture and fixtures 5 years 69,255 61,703 

628,290 559,907 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (411,559) (298,009) 

$216,731 $261,898 

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $113,550 and 
$114,629, respectively. 

Note 5 - Resident Student Enrollment 

HLCS’ per pupil allocation is determined by the New York State Education Department 
using New York State’s charter school funding formula. 
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HYDE LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL - BROOKLYN
	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
	

Note 6 - Commitments and Contingency 

a - As part of a building utilization plan with the New York City Department of 
Education, HLCS will be permanently sited in PS 328. The Department provides 
utilities and other maintenance and security services for the building during regular 
school hours. 

b - HLCS is obligated by the New York City Department of Education to maintain a 
$75,000 cash reserve. 

c - HLCS has retained Hyde Foundation to provide educational materials and various 
consulting and management services including training and accreditation review. A 
fee equal to 3% of HLCS’s annual aggregate pupil funding allocated by the New 
York City Department of Education is due and payable in three annual installments.  
The agreement expired June 30, 2015 and automatically renews and remains in 
effect for successive one year terms. Total fees paid to Hyde Foundation amounted 
to approximately $161,000 and $160,000 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 
2015, respectively. 

d - Government supported projects are subject to audit by the applicable granting 
agency. 

Note 7 - Concentration of Credit Risk 

HLCS’ cash is maintained in one financial institution. 

Note 8 - Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The cost of providing the various program and supporting services has been 
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain 
costs have been allocated among the programs and the supporting services benefited. 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
	



 

  

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
	
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
	

To the Board of Directors of 
Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn 

We have audited the financial statements of Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn as 
of and for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and our report thereon dated October 
21, 2016, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, appears 
on pages 1 and 2. Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 
financial statements as a whole. The Schedule of Functional Expenses for the year ended 
June 30, 2016 with comparative totals for 2015 is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

New York, New York 
October 21, 2016 
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159,763 

Legal fees 
-

-
-

3,116 
-

3,116 
3,116 

10,362 

Accounting and audit fees 
-

-
-

43,560 
-

43,560 
43,560 

48,486 
O

ther purchased, professional and consulting services 
295,294 

12,102 
307,396 

101,918 
6,698 

108,616 
416,012 

438,888 
R

epairs and m
aintenance 

4,760 
286 

5,046 
897 

80 
977 

6,023 
5,955 

Insurance 
22,985 

1,379 
24,364 

4,331 
387 

4,718 
29,082 

30,736 

Supplies 
182,480 

8,712 
191,192 

-
-

-
191,192 

150,536 
Equipm

ent and furnishings 
5,495 

263 
5,758 

-
-

-
5,758 

20,261 
S

taff developm
ent 

-
-

-
40,304 

38,498 
78,802 

78,802 
90,209 

M
arketing and recruitm

ent 
55,538 

-
55,538 

-
-

-
55,538 

17,558 

Food service 
20,464 

1,228 
21,692 

3,855 
345 

4,200 
25,892 

15,312 
Student services 

106,657 
-

106,657 
-

-
-

106,657 
92,889 

O
ffice expenses 

80,026 
4,802 

84,828 
15,079 

1,348 
16,427 

101,255 
92,194 

M
iscellaneous 

38,482 
2,309 

40,791 
7,253 

648 
7,901 

48,692 
25,683 

Total expenses before depreciation 
4,916,691 

269,823 
5,186,514 

974,578 
116,105 

1,090,683 
6,277,197 

5,170,001 
D

epreciation 
89,744 

5,385 
95,129 

16,909 
1,512 

18,421 
113,550 

114,629 

Total Expenses, 2016 
$5,006,435 

$275,208 
$5,281,643 

$ 
991,487 

$ 
117,617 

$1,109,104 
$6,390,747 

Total Expenses, 2015 
$3,987,412 

$313,180 
$4,300,592 

$ 
826,073 

$ 
157,965 

$ 
984,038 

$5,284,630 

See independent auditors' report on supplem
entary inform

ation. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
	
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
	

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
	
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
	

To the Board of Directors of 
Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn (a nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and 
the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 21, 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Hyde 
Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Hyde Leadership Charter School -
Brooklyn's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have 
not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hyde Leadership Charter School -
Brooklyn's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

New York, New York 
October 21, 2016 



   

           

       
  

  

  

  

    
    

     

                 
  

                 
             

             

                
             

             
           

New York State Education Department
�
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the Board 


of Regents
�

2015-16 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
3 that particular item 

Funding by School District information for all NYS School district is located on the State Aid website 
at https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school 
districts. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate additional districts if necessary. 

4 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference 

5 the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 

1 

https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter
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Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn 

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2016-2017 Assumptions 

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT & 
SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Paid Student Enrollment - -

SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL 

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR EDUCATION 

6,291,110 
3,089,841 
3,201,269 

433 

-

REGULAR EDUCATION 

6,291,110 

-

-

-

-

6,291,110 

-

-

-

-

6,291,110 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
This line should show 
how many students a 
school intends to be 
paid for. 

For Example: 
If a school plans on 
enrollment of 100 
students however is 
budgeting to only 
receive 95% of those 
students, 95 should be 
entered in in this row. 

CSI: 
hrubyda: 

Enter in the Per Pupil 
Rate (PPR) for the 
Current Year (CY). 

For Example: 
If this application is 
being submitted in 
2009-10 for a school 
opening in 2011-12, 
enter in the 2009-10 
PPR for that district in 
the cells below. If a 
higher PPR is assumed 
indicate that % increase 
in the ASSUMPTION 
column. 
Refer to the State Aid 
website for the tuition 
rates. 
https://stateaid.nysed.g 
ov/charter/ 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

Total Revenue - 698,593 12,400 - 7,002,103 
Total Expenses 617,878 60,000 - 3,114,126 6,881,844 

Net Income (617,878) 638,593 12,400 (3,114,126) 120,259 
Actual Student Enrollment 16 -

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 

District of Location $14,027.00 - - - - 6,291,110 Projected Average Annual Students of 449 in grades K-5 at $14,027 PPF
�

School District 2 (Enter Name)
�

School District 3 (Enter Name)
�

School District 4 (Enter Name)
�

School District 5 (Enter Name)
�

- - - - 6,291,110 1 0 1 

Special Education Revenue 

Grants 

Stimulus 

Other 

Other State Revenue 

- - - - 6,291,110TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs - - - - - -

Title I - - 185,244 - - 185,244 Based on Title I Preliminary Award 

Title Funding - Other - - 8,208 - - 8,208 Based on Title IIA Preliminary Award 

School Food Service (Free Lunch) - - - - - -

Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation - - - - - -

Other - - 505,141 - - 505,141 2016 ESSC Grant Awarded of $305,141 plus $200,000 Carryover from 2015 

Other Federal Revenue - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES - - 698,593 - - 698,593 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising - - - 3,500 - 3,500 $700 Contribution per 5 Board Members for Give or Get 

Erate Reimbursement - - - - - -

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, - - - 1,000 - 1,000 Estimate based on prior year's income generation on average savings balance 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) - - - - - -

Food Service (Income from meals) - - - - - -

Text Book - - - - - -

Other Local Revenue - - - 7,900 - 7,900 Projected contributions from parents to support student field trip based on prior year 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES - - - 12,400 - 12,400 

TOTAL REVENUE 6,291,110 - 698,593 12,400 - 7,002,103 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS 

Executive Management - - - - 385,439 385,439 Executive Director, Head of School, and HR Manager 

Instructional Management - - - - 6,000 6,000 Remaining of $65,000 Data Analyst Salary offset ny $59,000 ESSC Grant 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators - - - - 253,699 253,699 Dean of Curriculum & Students; Dir of SpEd & Family Learning ($70k Title I offset) 

CFO / Director of Finance - - - - 60,000 60,000 Consultant agreement with Horus Foster for Financial Advisory Services 
Operation / Business Manager - - - - 104,000 104,000 Director of Operations / Business Manager 
Administrative Staff - - - - 101,747 101,747 Administrative Assistant and Operations Assistant 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF - - - - 910,885 910,885 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular 1,225,057 - - - - 1,225,057 19 General Education Teachers. 3 in each Grade K, 1, 2, 3 & 4 plus 4 in Grade 5 
Teachers - SPED - 487,927 - - - 487,927 SpEd Teachers for Grades K, 1, 2, 3 & 4 plus 2 SETTS teachers (K-2 & 3-5) 

Substitute Teachers 

No. of Positions 

3.00 

1.00 

4.00 

1.00 

1.00 

2.00 

12 

19.00 

6.00 

12.00 

6.00 

2.00 

2.00 

3.00 

50 

62 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Sample titles that fall 
under this line: 
- Head of School 
- Superintendant 
- School Leader 
- Executive Director 
- CEO 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Sample titles that fall 
under this line: 
- Principal 
- Vice-Principal 
- Assistant Principal 
- Chief Academic 

Officer 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Sample titles that fall 
under this line: 
Director, Deans, 
Coordinators of: 
- Curriculum 
- Instruction 
- Faculty 
- Students 
- Assessment 
- Student Affairs 
- Student Achievement 
- Development 

hrubyda: 

- Attendance Clerk 

hrubyda: 

Sample titles that fall 

CSI: 
Sample titles that fall 
under this line: 
- Secretary 
- Receptionist 

- Office Manager 

- M th 
- Soci l Studies 
- Science 

CSI: 
Sample titles that fall 
under this line: 
Content/Subject Area 
Teachers: 

- E A 

- E 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 

under this line: 
- ESLL 
- Reaading 
- Math aand/or Literacy 

Specialists 
- Art 

Music 
F reign Languages 

- Photography 
- Ceramics 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Sample titles that fall 
under this line: 
-- Speech Therapists 
-- Soocial Workers 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Cafeteria 
Other 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Health and Dental 
Social Security 
Medicare 
Unemployment 
Other 

- 51,750 - - - - 51,750 Assumes 23 Instructional Teachers utilize 10 Days vacation at $225/day substitute 
Teaching Assistants 

P

498,000 - - - - 498,000 12 Associate Teachers with 2 in each Grade K, 1, 2, 3, 4, & 5 
Specialty Teachers 320,723 - - - - 320,723 Art, Music, Physical Ed, Dance (Contractor), Technology, and Science Teachers 

Aides 128,322 - - - - 128,322 K-2 Academic Intervention and Grades 3-5 Academic Intervention 
Therapists & Counselors 71,699 - - - - 71,699 Two Counselors 

Other 144,440 - - - - 144,440 Literacy Specialist K-5, ELL Coordinator, Character Program Coordinator 
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 2,439,991 487,927 - - - 2,927,918 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse - - - - - - -

Librarian - - - - - - -

Custodian - - - - - - -

Security - - - - - - -

Other - - - - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL - - - - - - -

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 2,439,991 487,927 - - 910,885 3,838,803 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 227,873 45,568 60,000 - 85,068 418,509 Calculated based on tax rates for FICA, SUI, and FUI 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 380,243 76,038 - - 141,950 598,231 ADP TotalSource Health, Dental, Vision, and Life Insurance Bundle for 60 FTEs 
Retirement / Pension 41,734 8,346 - - 15,580 65,659 Based on Prior Year Employee Participation in Employer Matching 401K Plan 
TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 649,850 129,951 60,000 - 242,599 1,082,399 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 3,089,841 617,878 60,000 - 1,153,484 4,921,202 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit - - - - 59,000 59,000 Contract terms with Fiscal Mgmt Associates and Lutz & Carr Auditors 
Legal - - - - 10,000 10,000 Contingent Legal Fees based on Prior Year 
Management Company Fee - - - - 125,963 125,963 Hyde Foundation Management Fee at 2% of PPF 

Nurse Services - - - - - -

Food Service / School Lunch 

Payroll Services - - - - 106,023 106,023 ADP TotalSource Service Agreement 
Special Ed Services 

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) 

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting - - - - 37,200 37,200 Contract terms with ELA & Math Consultants and Temp Services 
TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES - - - - 338,186 338,186 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

Board Expenses - - - - 13,000 13,000 Board Training Proposal quote from Board on Track Consultants 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials - - - - 57,300 57,300 Based on Prior Year $128 per Pupil Spending at 2016 Projected Enrollment 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials 

Textbooks / Workbooks - - - - 180,135 180,135 Based on Prior Year $401 per Pupil Spending at 2016 Projected Enrollment 

Supplies & Materials other - - - - 9,000 9,000 Supplies for Sports, Art, Music, and Tech Depts at $2,000 each; Dance at $1,000 

Equipment / Furniture - - - - 3,500 3,500 New furniture anticipated for Science and Dean's Room; possibly new computer 

Telephone 

Technology - - - - 53,000 53,000 IT Hosting & Maintenance Agreement with Network Outsource 
Student Testing & Assessment - - - - 70,671 70,671 Based on Prior Year $157 per Pupil Spending at 2016 Projected Enrollment 

Field Trips - - - - 41,038 41,038 Based on Prior Year $91 per Pupil Spending at 2016 Projected Enrollment 
Transportation (student) 

Student Services - other - - - - 60,843 60,843 Based on Prior Year $136 per Pupil Spending for Tutoring & Saturday Academy 

Office Expense - - - - 69,000 69,000 Office, Supplies, Postage, Shipping, Printing and Copying 

Staff Development - - - - 25,000 25,000 ED/Staff Professional Development Proposals: Hyde 101 + Positive Action Quotes 

Staff Recruitment 

Student Recruitment / Marketing - - - - 28,328 28,328 Based on Prior Year Student Acquisition Cost of $63 per Pupil 
School Meals / Lunch - - - - 27,945 27,945 Based on Prior Year $62 per Pupil Spending at 2016 Projected Enrollment 

Travel (Staff) - - - - 20,000 20,000 Estimated Staff Travel to Conferences and Hyde Foundation in Bath, ME 
Fundraising - - - - 698,593 698,593 Title I, Title IIA, and ESSC Unallocated Expenses offset by Grant Revenue 

Other - - - - 45,528 45,528 Special Student / Parent Event, Staff Holiday Event, and Miscellaneous 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS - - - - 1,402,881 1,402,881 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance - - - - 29,000 29,000 Liability and Directors & Officers Insurance via Austin & Co Agreement 
Janitorial 

Building and Land Rent / Lease 

Repairs & Maintenance - - - - 7,000 7,000 Flat to prior year 

Equipment / Furniture - - - - 47,575 47,575 Due to flat staffing, no significant expenditures; except Year 3 Apple Lease Payment 
Security 

Utilities - - - - 23,000 23,000 Dues and Subscription Services 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE - - - - 106,575 106,575 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION - - - - 113,000 113,000 Assumes No New CapEx and D&A remains flat to prior year 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY 

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,089,841 617,878 60,000 - 3,114,126 6,881,844 

NET INCOME 3,201,269 (617,878) 638,593 12,400 (3,114,126) 120,259 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Janitorial 
Consultants 
- Assessment 
- Technology 
- Other 

Security 
Background Screening 
Public Relations 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Development 
Conferenceshrubyda: 
CSI: 
Curriculum 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Instructional 
Non-Instructional 
Athletic 
Music 
Office Equipment 
* Includes the Purchase 
or Lease of any of the 
above 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Hardware 
Software 
Internet 
Wiring 
Other 
hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Uniforms 
Special Events 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Printing 
Postage 
Copying 
All Other 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Conferences 
hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Interest 
Bank Charges 
Bad Debt 
Misc. Fees (i.e. 
Licensing) 
Dues & Membership 
All Other 
(If any questions 
contact CSI)hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Facility 
Equipment 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Facility Related 
* Includes the Purchase 
or Lease of any 
equipment 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
Electric 
Gas 
Other 

hrubyda: 
CSI: 
$75,000 should be set 
aside for Dissolution 
and it can be spread out 
over the first THREE 
years if the school 
chooses. If spread out 
each year should 
minimally be $25k. 

A note can be added 
under assumptions 
describing the breakout. 

REGULAR EDUCATION SPECIAL EDUCATION TOTAL ENROLLED 

District of Location 433 16 449 

School District 2 (Enter Name) -

School District 3 (Enter Name) -

School District 4 (Enter Name) -
School District 5 (Enter Name) -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 433 16 449 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 14,529 - 1,556 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 7,136 38,617 134 

2 

http:14,027.00


	
  



	
  

	
  



	
  
	
  

 
 

    

             
    

    

      
    

      

   

  

        

 

  
      

  

        

 

          
            

               
              
           

         
        

    
 

   
     

    
 

    
 

   
  

 

 

 

 

   
        

 

 

 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: _____JAMES CECIL SIMPSON, JR.________________________ 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is the
 
Charter School Name):
 

______________Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn______________________ 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, 
treasurer, parent representative). 

Chairman of the Board of Trustees 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes __X__No
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, 

your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes __X__No
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, 

your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you 
in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the 
Education Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the 
six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest 
or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid a 
conflict of interest, (e.g., did 
not vote, did not participate 

in discussion) 

Name of person holding 
interest or engaging in 

transaction and relationship 
to yourself 

NONE Please write “None” if 
applicable. Do not leave blank. 
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5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, committee, proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock 
company, business or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other 
organization or group of people doing business with the school(s) governed by 
the Education Corporation and in which such entity, during the time of your 
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member(s) or person(s) 
living in your house had a financial interest or other relationship. If you are a 
member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with 
the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) through a 
management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with the 
school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member of 
household holding an interest 
in the organization conducting 
business with the school(s) and 

the nature of the interest 

Steps 
Taken to 

Avoid 
Conflict of 

Interest 

NONE “Please write “None” if 
applicable. Do not leave blank. 

Signature James Cecil Simpson, Jr.	 Date – 25 July 2016 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: ______________ 

Business Address: __ _____________ 

E-mail Address: ___ ______________ 

Home Telephone: __ _____________ 

Home Address: ____ _________ 



 
 

     

             
    

    

    
      

        

   

   

        

 

    
      

  

        

 

    
            

               
   
              

         
        

    
 

   
     

    
 

    
 

   
  

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: ____________Jack Brown , III________________________________ 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is the 
Charter School Name): 

______________Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn______________________ 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, 

treasurer, parent representative).
 

Vice-Chairman of the Board of Trustees 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes _ ✓__No
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, 

your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes __✓__No
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, 

your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you 
in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the 
Education Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the 
six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest 
or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid a 
conflict of interest, (e.g., did 
not vote, did not participate 

in discussion) 

Name of person holding 
interest or engaging in 

transaction and relationship 
to yourself 

NONE 



	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  

 

 

    
     

         
     

             
           

              
         

          
           
   

        

 
 

  
 

  
 
 

 
   

 
 

    
 

  
 

   
    

 
  
 
  

 

 

 

 

     

        
               

                  
              

     

  

    

   

   

   

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock 
company, business or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other 
organization or group of people doing business with the school(s) governed by 
the Education Corporation and in which such entity, during the time of your 
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member(s) or person(s) 
living in your house had a financial interest or other relationship. If you are a 
member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with 
the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) through a 
management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with the 
school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member of 
household holding an interest 
in the organization conducting 
business with the school(s) and 

the nature of the interest 

Steps 
Taken to 

Avoid 
Conflict of 

Interest 

NONE 

07/28/2016 

Signature 	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: ________ 

Business Address: _ ________ 

E-mail Address: ___ ________ 

Home Telephone: _ _________ 

Home Address: ___ _______ 



	
  
	
  

 
 

      

             
    

    

      
      

  

   

    

        

 

  
      

     

        

 

         
            

               
              
              

         
        

    
 

   
     

    
 

    
 

   
  

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: Cicily Robinson 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is the 
Charter School Name): 

______________Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn______________________ 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president,
 
treasurer, parent representative).
 

Treasurer

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes _X No
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, 

your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes X No
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, 

your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you 
in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the 
Education Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the 
six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest 
or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid a 
conflict of interest, (e.g., did 
not vote, did not participate 

in discussion) 

Name of person holding 
interest or engaging in 

transaction and relationship 
to yourself 

NONE 



	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  

 

 

    
     

         
     

             
           

              
           

          
           
   

      

 
 

  
 

  
 
 

 
   

 
 

    
 

  
 

   
    

 
  
 
  

 

 

 

 

     

              
               

                  
              
      

 

 

 

 

   

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock 
company, business or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other 
organization or group of people doing business with the school(s) governed by 
the Education Corporation and in which such entity, during the time of your 
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member(s) or person(s) 
living in your house had a financial interest or other relationship. If you are a 
member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with 
the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) through a 
management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with the 
school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member of 
household holding an interest 
in the organization conducting 
business with the school(s) and 

the nature of the interest 

Steps 
Taken to 

Avoid 
Conflict of 

Interest 

NONE 

July	
  27, 2016
 
Signature 	 Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telep 

Business Addr 

E-mail Addres 

Home Telepho 

Home Address 



	
  
	
  
	
  

 
 

    

             
    

    

      
      

     

   

   

        

 

  
      

  

        

 

         
            

               
              
              

         
         

    
 

   
     

    
 

    
 

 
  

 

 

 

 

    

 

 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: ____________Latisha Green________________________________ 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is the 
Charter School Name): 

______________Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn______________________ 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president,
 
treasurer, parent representative).
 

Parent Representative 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes _ ✓__No
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, 

your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the Management Company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes __✓__No
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, 

your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you 
in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the 
Education Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the 
six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest 
or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid a 
conflict of interest, (e.g., did 
not vote, did not participate 

in discussion) 

Name of person holding 
interest or engaging in 

transaction and relationship 
to yourself 

NONE 



	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  

 

 

    
     

         
     

             
           

              
         

          
           
   

        

 
 

  
 

  
 
 

 
   

 
 

    
 

  
 

   
    

 
  
 
  

 

 

 

 

     

                                                 
                 

                  
              

     

  

    

      

      

      

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock 
company, business or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other 
organization or group of people doing business with the school(s) governed by 
the Education Corporation and in which such entity, during the time of your 
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member(s) or person(s) 
living in your house had a financial interest or other relationship. If you are a 
member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with 
the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) through a 
management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with the 
school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member of 
household holding an interest 
in the organization conducting 
business with the school(s) and 

the nature of the interest 

Steps 
Taken to 

Avoid 
Conflict of 

Interest 

NONE 

July 30, 2016 
Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: 

Business Address: 

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephone: 

Home Address: 



	
  
  

 

    

             
   

    

      
         

 

  
  

       

 

        
      

  

       

         
            

               
              
              

         
         

    
 

   
    

   
  

    
 

 
   

 

 

 

   
    

  

 

    
  

  

    
 

 

 

 

 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: ____Joanne Goubourn___________________________________ 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is the 
Charter School Name): 

_____________Hyde Leadership Charter School - Brooklyn_________________ 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, 
treasurer, parent representative). Education committee member, member 

2.	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes __x__No
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, 

your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
 

3.	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes _X__No
 
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, 

your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.
 

4.	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you 
in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the 
Education Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the 
six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest 
or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid a 
conflict of interest, (e.g., 

did not vote, did not 
participate in discussion) 

Name of person holding 
interest or engaging in 

transaction and 
relationship to yourself 

June 2010 
–January 

2013 

Family member Lauren 
Walcott was an employee 

during school start-up 

Did not participate in 
hiring or employment 

discussion of employee 

Lauren Walcott is my 
daughter 



	
  

 

    
     

         
     

             
           

              
           

          
           
   

      

 
 

  
 

  
 
 

 
  

 
 

    
 

  
 

   
    

  
   

 

 

  

 

 

  
 

 

   
  

  

   
     

   
 

   
 

              
                 

                  
              

     

     

       

    

         

    

5.	 Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock 
company, business or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other 
organization or group of people doing business with the school(s) governed by 
the Education Corporation and in which such entity, during the time of your 
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member(s) or person(s) 
living in your house had a financial interest or other relationship. If you are a 
member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with 
the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) through a 
management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with the 
school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member of 
household holding an interest 
in the organization conducting 
business with the school(s) and 

the nature of the interest 

Steps Taken to 
Avoid Conflict of 

Interest 

Hyde Foundation Licensing and
Contracted 

Services 

2% of annual 
aggregate per 
pupil funding 

Joanne Goubourn – Executive 
Director of the Hyde Foundation 

Recluse myself during
discussions regarding 
the Hyde Foundation

Agreement 

____________________________________________ ___7/29/16_____ 
Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: 

Business Address: 

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephone: 

Home Address: 
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Summary	
  of JULYMeeting
Of the Board of Trustees

Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn
APPROVED

Held at Hyde Leadership Charter School -­‐ Brooklyn
33 Alabama Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11205

July 29, 2015

Trustees Present: Trustee Absent:
Cecil Simpson, Jr., Chair Cicily Robinson, Treasurer
Latisha	
  Green, Parent Representative
Joanne Goubourn
Jack Brown, III, Vice Chair*
Christina Brown
Sandra	
  J. DuPree, Ed.D., Executive Director

Called	
  to	
  order by Chair at 6:45 p.m.

Action Items
APPROVE June Minutes

Motion by: Jack Brown, III
Seconded by: Christina Brown
Action: Approved Unanimously

Officer and Committee Reports

Chairman’s Report
Cecil Simpson, Jr., Chairman reported the need to expand the current Board for	
  SY 2015 – 2016.
The monthly meeting schedule for the SY is being finalized. Information is forthcoming.

School-­‐At-­‐Large
Dr. Sandra DuPree, Executive Director reported on the 2015 -­‐2016	
  monthly dashboard, which	
  will
include additional metrics (including enrollment data, average daily attendance, staffing, parent
participation	
  and performance outcomes).

Dr. DuPree reported Recruitment and Enrollment effort and updates. She also noted that HLCSB
will work more closely with the Hyde Foundation this year to increase services and support the
school’ character	
  development and growth.

Education	
  Report
Christine Forbes, Head	
   of School reported on the changes	
   in scheduling, programming and class
configurations. Additionally, she reported on instructional focus areas across all grades as well as
the use of ELA and Math coaches to support	
  teachers in ongoing PD.

Finance & Audit Committee:
No report at this time.



MOVED to adjourn meeting.

Motion by: Cecil Simpson, Jr.
Second by: Joanne Goubourn
Action: Meeting Adjourned

Meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m.

Next meeting will be held on August 31, 2016 at Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn,	
  330
Alabama Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11207 at 6:30p.m.



Summary	
  of AUGUST	
  Meeting
Of the Board of Trustees

Of
Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn

APPROVED
Held at	
  Hyde Leadership Charter School -­‐ Brooklyn

33 Alabama Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11205

AUGUST 31, 2015

Trustees Present: Trustee Absent:
Cecil Simpson, Chair Latisha	
  Green, Parent Representative
Christina Brown Cicily Robinson, Treasurer
Joanne Goubourn*
Jack Brown, III, Vice Chair*
Claire Robinson*

Attendees:
Sandra	
  J. DuPree, Ed.D., Executive Director Jack Foster, II – Financial Consultant
Rebecca Chatteram, Director of Operations Christine Forbes, Head	
  of School

Called	
  to	
  order by	
  Chair at 6:35 p.m.

Action Items
APPROVE July Board Minutes

Motion by: Cecil Simpson, Jr.
Seconded by: Jack Brown, III
Action: Approved unanimously

Action Items

Chairman’s Report
Cecil Simpson, Chairman, noted	
  the importance of a renewed approach to the instructional program
as well as the need for additional resources to	
  support student learning.

The Chairman	
  requested to see more enrichment activities and events for students and families in	
  
an effort to	
  provide exposure.

School-­‐At-­‐Large Education Report
Dr. Sandra DuPree, Executive Director reported on the 201 -­‐2016	
  monthly dashboard, which	
  will
include additional metrics	
  (including enrollment data,	
  average daily attendance, staffing, parent
participation and performance outcomes).

The monthly Trustee meetings will convene on	
   the third Monday of every month. In	
  an	
  effort to
ensure	
  that everyone	
  is prepared, we	
  will request all agenda	
  items on or before the prior Monday.
All meeting materials will be disseminated the Wednesday prior.



Twenty-­‐five new and returning teachers added Hyde 101 at Hyde in Woodstock, CT, August 11th –
13th. Pre-­‐service training for all faculty/staff	
  began on August 17th. Teachers have received training
across all content and	
   school-­‐wide practices. Pre-­‐Service training	
   sessions were facilitated by
school administration, faculty members, outside consultants and The Hyde Foundation.	
   School will
officially	
  begin on Tuesday, September 8, 2015.

All vacancies have been filled for the new year with the exception of one 4th grade ICT vacancy;
Candidate in the pipeline.

Dr. DuPree and Mrs. Forbes spoke to the changes in approach, materials and structures for the
coming school year to bring about improved results in student performance.

Finance & Audit Committee:
Jack Foster, II, Finance Committee reports that HLCSB	
  is in good financial standing.
HLCSB will connect with our auditors, Lutz Carr to start the annual audit.

Education Committee:
Mrs. Christine Forbes, Head	
  of School reported on the Math and ELA Instructional Report that gives
indications of	
  student performance on the state examination by standard.

Dr. Sandra	
  DuPree,	
  Executive Director,	
   report on the student performance data noting the cohort
movement each year. An increase in proficiency rates among the 4th grade cohort transitioning	
  to	
  
5th grade.

Operation’s Report
Mrs. Chatteram	
  reported the current enrollment numbers and recruitment strategies. Enrollment
is currently 398, 9 less the 407 target.

MOVED to adjourn meeting.

Motion	
  by: Cecil Simpson, Jr.
Second by: Joanne Goubourn
Action: Meeting Adjourned

Meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m.

Next meeting will be held on September 21, 2015 at Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn,	
  
33 Alabama Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 1120 at 6:30p.m.



Summary	
  of SEPTEMBERMeeting
Of the Board of Trustees

Of
Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn

APPROVED
Held at Hyde Leadership Charter School -­‐ Brooklyn

33 Alabama Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11205

September 21, 2015

Trustees Present: Trustee Absent:
Cecil Simpson, Jr., Chair Claire Robinson
Cicily Robinson, Treasurer*
Latisha	
  Green, Parent Representative
Joanne Goubourn
Jack Brown, III, Vice Chair*
Christina Brown*

Attendees:
Sandra	
  J. DuPree, Ed.D., Executive Director Jack Foster, II – Financial Consultant*
Rebecca Chatteram, Director of Operations Christine Forbes, Head	
  of School

Called	
  to	
  order by Chair at 6:35 p.m.

Action Items
APPROVE August Board Minutes

Motion by: Cecil Simpson, Jr.
Seconded by: Joanne Goubourn
Action: Approved unanimously

Action Items

Chairman’s Report
Cecil Simpson, Chairman reported	
  the continues need	
  for collaboration and	
  clear focus around	
  
student achievement.

School-­‐At-­‐Large Education Report
Dr. Sandra DuPree, Executive Director reported on	
   the September dashboard to note the current
student enrollment is	
   less	
   5% of the enrollment goal, primarily due to the low enrollment in
Kindergarten.

Dr. DuPree conducted a review of State ELA	
  and Math performance comparison data including a
look at cohort performance during HLCSB testing years. Additionally, Dr. DuPree introduced
summary sheets	
   to show last year’s	
  Dean’s area and Family Ed/Parent Participation data, which
will be used in developing strategies to increase parent participation. Dean’s area summary data



will be used in planning professional development around classroom management, rewards and
incentives as well as guide school-­‐wide responses to discipline.

HLCSB has an enrollment increase in Students with Disabilities (SWD’s) and Limited English
Proficiency (LEP). The LEP	
  enrollment has exceed	
  the NYSED target by 1 student, while the SWD
enrollment is 20 students less the	
  NYSED target.

The overall school climate is strong and teachers possess an	
  “All	
   In” collegial	
  spirit. Students are
becoming acclimated and settled to the new year’s routines. Teachers have been	
   consistent in	
  
guiding	
  students and have demonstrated openness to	
  feedback from the instructional team as well
as the ELA coach (consultant).

Education Report:

Mrs. Christine Forbes, Head of School provided an update on the current instructional focuses and
supports	
  including ongoing professional development around
Reading Comprehension, Writing, CFU

The year’s curricular/schedule changes include the move from school-­‐wide guided reading groups
to in-­‐class groups that incorporate enrichment teachers into classes across all grades.
A intervention period has been added three (3) days per week (each day dedicated to Reading,
Writing, and Math). Other modifications and additions include Shared Reading	
   (shared text,
challenge books),	
  the use of FUNDATIONS across grades K -­‐2	
  three to	
  five days per week.

Professional Development training session	
   on	
   the new school-­‐wide The Writing	
   Plan conducted
across all grades. The Writing	
  Plan outlines the weekly	
  academic writing	
  structure and	
  3 day Genre	
  
Units.

Two coaches (ELA and Math) have been	
   added support teachers in	
   their instructional practice,
while providing on-­‐going	
   professional development. The Math Coach will focus on	
   Problem-­‐
Solving	
  (CGI) and Common Core Strategies over period	
  of 1 sessions beginning	
  September 30th.

Mrs. Forbes noted a number of intervention programs have been implemented to assist students in
need	
  of additional support. The current caseload is	
   as	
   follows: Academic Intervention Supports	
  
(Grades 3 – 5) -­‐ 42 Students using FUNDATIONS -­‐ (3rd)/Just	
  Words (4th)/LLI 5th, Focus Math; Test
Ready.	
   Academic Intervention Supports (Grades K – 2) -­‐ 35 students using FUNDATIONS – (K-­‐
2)/Phono-­‐Graphix/LLI,	
  Focus Math

Current SWD enrollment 39-­‐40	
  students across grades K – 5, 24 students requiring speech	
  and	
  18
requiring SETTS. The current LEP enrollment averages	
   43-­‐48	
   students. Approximately 30
accelerating	
  students will receive additional supports in	
  ELA to	
  continue their advancement.

To further support students, afterschool programming will begin	
  in	
  late October and service sixty
(60)	
  students across grades 3 -­‐5	
  in	
  ELA across grades 3 – 5, thirty (30) across grades K -­‐2	
  and	
  60
students	
  across	
  grades	
  K – 5 in	
  Math. Fountas & Pinnell Assessments have	
  been given to	
  all new
students	
   to determine current reading levels. Data for New Students (Reading via Fountas &
Pinnell) is as follows:	
  

Grade of New Students At or Above Grade Level (F&P) Below Grade
(F&P)

Level

K 54 *Too early to assess
1 20 35% 65%
2 9 44% 56%
3 11 27% 73%
4 8 12% 88%
5 3 33% 67%



Finance Operations Report:
Mrs. Chatteram, Director of Operations reiterated current enrollment and continued efforts to reach
the SY2015 – 2016 enrollment targets.

HLCSB is revamping the school’s website to offer more information and resources to current and
prospective families. The website transition	
  and launch will occur mid-­‐November.

Although with some challenges, the student information system PowerSchool implementation
continues to move forward.

The CPA’s at Lutz & Carr have begun	
  preparing for HLCSB’s annual audit. Lutz and Carr reps will be
on site beginning	
  September 22, 201 to	
  audit and	
  review records.

Jack Foster, II, Director of	
  Finance consultant reports that HLCSB is in good financial	
  standing.

MOVED to adjourn meeting.

Motion by: Cecil Simpson, Jr.
Second by: Latisha	
  Green
Action: Meeting Adjourned

Meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m.

Next meeting will be held on Monday, October 19, 2015 at Hyde Leadership Charter School –
Brooklyn,	
  330 Alabama Avenue,	
  Brooklyn,	
  NY 11207 at 6:30p.m.



Hyd Leadership Charter	
  School – Brooklyn
Board of Trustees OCTOBERMeeting Summary

APPROVED
Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn

33 Alabama Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11205

October 19, 2015

Trustees Present:
Cecil Simpson, Jr., Chair, Cicily Robinson, Treasurer*
Joanne Goubourn, Jack Brown, III, Vice Chair*,
Christina Brown* Joanne Goubourn
Claire Robinson

Trustees Absent:
Latisha	
  Green, Parent Representative

Attendees:
Sandra	
  J. DuPree, Ed.D., Executive Director
Jack Foster, II, Director of	
  Finance Consultant
Christine Forbes, Head	
  of School

Called	
  to	
  order by trustee member at	
  6:51 p.m.

Action Items

APPROVE,	
  September Board Minutes

Motion by: Cecil Simpson, Jr.
Seconded by: Joanne Goubourn
Action: Approved unanimously

OFFICER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

Chairman’s Report
Cecil Simpson, Jr., Chairman noted	
  the need	
  for additional testing that will clearly show student
over time. Additional requests and	
  concerns around	
  the need	
  for additional afterschool
programming that addresses a range of academic and enrichment areas.

School-­‐At-­‐Large	
  Report
Sandra	
  J. DuPree, Executive Director reported on the overall state of the school as positive.
Teachers are focused on	
  instruction	
  and supporting student performance.

Afterschool tutoring will begin in October. Programming with support students who are working below
level	
  and students on the cusp of	
  forward movement.
Twenty-­‐two teachers attended Hyde 101 October 1st – October 3rd in Woodstock, CT.
Currently, 95% (3	
  remain to	
  be trained) of the faculty/staff have participated	
  in the Hyde 101
experience. Teachers reported having	
   positive and impactful experience.



HLCSB has partnered with The Art of Stepping (AOS) for an afterschool activity. The step team will
work with a heterogeneous group of 20 students to introduce them to a series of routines, calls and
beats with discipline and precision. Students meet on	
  Wednesdays from 4:00 p.m. – 6:00	
  p.m.

To address the request for additional testing, Dr. DuPree agreed that there needed to be deeper
analysis of current data	
  to	
  demonstrate student performance and growth over time. The review of
NWEA assessment and the STEP could serve to provide additional information.

Dr. DuPree presented the results of the SY2015 End-­‐of-­‐Year Action Plan results. The outcomes
noted	
   and	
   increased	
   focus in	
   leadership, performance in	
   ANET	
   and F&P	
   comparison	
   data and
impact of	
  afterschool program on student performance.

Education	
  Committee
Christine Forbes, Head	
  of School reported	
  on current student math	
  assessment data. The overall
student performance by classroom, domains and	
   standards were presented	
   along with	
   academic
focus areas.

Foutas & Pinnell Benmark Reading	
   Assessments are currently	
   underway. Assessments will be
completed	
  by	
  month’s end	
  to	
  share at the November 201 meeting.

Afterschool tutoring began	
  this month	
  using Read	
  180 and	
  System 44 for students in	
  Grades – 4.

The collaboration	
  with the ELA and Math coach is going well. Teachers have received a number of
supports	
  to with instruction through resources	
  and model lessons. Teachers	
  are welcoming	
  of the
feedback from the external	
  coaches as well	
  as instructional	
  team members.

Hyde Foundation Report
Joanne Goubourn, Executive Director of	
  the Foundation, reported on the recent work to support
the school in deepening the Hyde culture. To date, the Hyde Foundation has conduced and
participated in	
  pre-­‐service sessions. 2015 -­‐2016	
  PD dates have been	
  confirmed.

The Hyde Foundation	
  hosted teachers for Hyde 101, which went well. Everyone was engaged
and participatory, which was highlight. The tone of the school and the level of Hyde integration	
  
is moving forward.

Finance & Operations Committee
Jack Foster, II, Director of	
  Finance consultant reported on current financials. The school	
  is in strong
financial	
  standing.

The final audit requests are underway. Draft of financial statements were sent on	
   Friday,
10/16/2015. HLCSB is currently working on	
  final audit requests and anticipate the completion by
Wednesday, 10/21/2015

The building is currently now up to date with fixtures (i.e. restrooms and AC in classrooms). One	
  
classroom had their AC unit break

We are still awaiting permission from NYC DOE to install the sign fixture outside of the arrival
entrance.

Enrollment as of October 2015, actively recruiting to fill seats in	
  K-­‐1. Still pulling from waitlist	
  for
2nd -­‐ 4th grades.



Currently working with	
  graphic designer to	
  have a banner hung outside of the main entrance and	
  
side of the building (Branding and Recruitment)

Implementation of School Mint: online portal that	
  hosts the student	
  applications, lottery, waitlist	
  
and follow up with families on a weekly	
  or bi-­‐weekly basis.

Receiving quotes for bus ads, street ads and newspaper ads for a January 2016-­‐ February	
  2016.

MOVED to adjourn meeting.

Motion by: Cecil Simpson, Jr.
Second by: Joanne Goubourn
Action: Meeting Adjourned

Meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m.

Next meeting will be held on Monday, November 16, 2015 at Hyde Leadership Charter School –
Brooklyn,	
  330 Alabama Avenue,	
  Brooklyn,	
  NY 11207 at 6:30p.m.



Hyde Leadership Charter	
  School – Brooklyn
Board of Trustees NOVEMBERMeeting Summary

APPROVED
Hyde Leadership Charter	
  School – Brooklyn	
  

330 Alabama Avenue
Brooklyn,	
  NY	
   11207

November 16, 2015

Trustees	
  Present:
Cecil Simpson, Jr., Chair,	
   Cicily	
  Robinson, Treasurer*
Joanne	
  Goubourn, Jack Brown, III, Vice Chair*,
Christina Brown* Joanne	
  Goubourn
Claire Robinson

Trustees	
  Absent:
Latisha Green, Parent Representative

Attendees:
Sandra	
  J.	
  DuPree,	
  Ed.D.,	
  Executive Director
Jack Foster, II, Director	
  of Finance	
  Consultant
Christine	
  Forbes, Head	
  of School

Called	
  to order by trustee member at 6:45 p.m.

Action	
  Items

TABLED, Board Minutes

OFFICER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

Chairman’s	
  Report
No report at this time.

School-­‐At-­‐Large Report
Sandra	
   J.	
   DuPree,	
   Executive Director reported	
   the school continues to move forwards
with focused instruction. Afterschool tutoring continues for students who require
additional	
  support.	
  

Dr. DuPree	
   presented information from	
   the performance dashboard	
   showing	
   targeted	
  
measures from	
  the current charter.

Education	
  Committee



Christine Forbes, Head of School reported on current student math assessment data.
Overall	
   student performance data according	
   to	
   Fountas & Pinnell	
   Benchmark Reading
Assessments was shared to show	
  current	
  student	
  growth and instructional	
  levels.	
  

Students continue in using Read 180 and System	
  44 for students in Grades 1 – 4.

Hyde	
  Foundation	
  Report
Joanne	
   Goubourn, Executive	
  Director	
   of the	
   Foundation, reported	
   on the	
   recent work to	
  
support the	
  school in deepening	
  the	
  Hyde culture.	
   The Foundation team	
  has been in the
school providing guided support and collaborative professional development for teachers.

Finance & Operations	
  Committee
Jack	
  Foster,	
  II, Director of Finance consultant	
  reported	
  on current	
  financials. The school is
in strong	
  financial standing.

MOVED, to adjourn meeting.

Motion by: Cecil Simpson, Jr.
Second	
  by: Joanne	
  Goubourn
Action: Meeting Adjourned

Meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m.

Next meeting will be held on Monday, December 21, 2015 at Hyde Leadership Charter
School – Brooklyn, 330 Alabama Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11207 at 6:30p.m.



Hyde Leadership Charter	
  School – Brooklyn
Board of TrusteesDECEMBERMeeting Summary

APPROVED
Hyde Leadership Charter	
  School – Brooklyn	
  

330 Alabama Avenue
Brooklyn,	
  NY	
   11207

December 21, 2015

Trustees	
  Present:
Cecil Simpson, Jr., Chair,
Joanne	
  Goubourn,

Trustees	
  Absent:
Latisha Green, Parent Representative Jack Brown,	
  III, Vice Chair*,	
  
Christina Brown* Claire	
  Robinson
Cicily	
  Robinson, Treasurer*

Attendees:
Sandra	
  J.	
  DuPree,	
  Ed.D.,	
  Executive Director Rebecca Chatteram, Director of

Operations
Christine	
  Forbes, Head	
  of School

Called to order by trustee member at 6:35 PM	
  

Action	
  Items

TABLED,	
  November Board Minutes

OFFICER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

Chairman’s	
  Report
No report at this time.

School-­‐At-­‐Large Report
Sandra	
   J.	
  DuPree,	
  Executive Director reported	
  on the overall	
  state of the school as
positive.	
   With one (1) day remaining until the Winter break, teachers remain
focused and students are relatively calm. There is a heightened awareness and
focus on students and families in need and the overall social/emotional balance of
students,	
  so the	
  last day	
  is dedicated to Holiday Fun Activities. The activities follow
the same tone of the weekly Discovery Groups lessons.



The current tone of the faculty is good. The majority of the staff attended the Hyde
Holiday	
  
Party on December 12th. The participation	
  spoke to the current	
  state of the school and
faculty morale.

Afterschool tutoring and enrichment programming continues. The AOS (Art of Stepping
Students) students will perform	
  at the Barclay Center on January 16th.
Hyde has partnered with LEAP to start to	
  an	
  afterschool Chess Club starting	
   in January	
  
2016
with approximately 20 participants.

The annual winter show (December 17th) yielded a great turnout from	
  parents. However,
monthly Parent Discover Night participation continues to be a challenge.	
   Parent
participation	
   in November was only twenty-­‐four	
   percent (24%). Parent-­‐Teacher	
  
Conference	
  participation is typically much higher, so we will begin to delve more deeply
into looking at programming and following-­‐up with parents about their commitment to
HLCBS.

HLCSB is still hiring for a Data Manager. Thus	
   far, we	
   have	
   no	
   viable	
   candidates	
   in the	
  
pipeline. Recruitment is still underway.

Education	
  Committee
Christine	
  Forbes, Head	
  of School provided	
  general educational updates	
  and	
  student
performance data. Students recently finished Quarter 1 ANET for ELA	
  and Mathematics.
The data shows	
  
some improvement across the grades and areas of concern. As a result, we will continue
to
work closely with the Math, ELA	
  and ANET coaches to hone in on	
  strategies	
  to support	
  
students	
  
and teachers.

To get further data requested the Board’s Chairman, student in grades 3 -­‐5	
  will also	
  take	
  
the
iReady online exam	
  within the 3rd week	
  in	
  January.	
  

Saturday Academy for students in grades 3 – 5 will begin	
  January	
  9th from	
  
9:00 AM – 12:00 PM.	
   There will be more discussion on about student incentives to
increase	
  
and maintain high attendance.

The Observe for Success observation tool has been implemented for use in formal and
informal teachers evaluations.	
  

PowerSchool training	
   has begun	
   at the	
   teacher	
   level.	
   Mrs.	
   Forbes	
   will	
   guide teachers
through
this training during grade level meetings.

This year’s	
  Professional Development Plan continues to move forward with a myriad of PD
offered across	
  ELA,	
  Math and character culture.	
   Teachers	
  are	
  able to take advantage of
outside training sessions and conferences to improve their craft. Associate Teachers also
receive focused support by the Dean of Curriculum	
  in mini-­‐workshop	
  sessions.	
  



 

 

Hyde	
  Foundation Report
Joanne	
  Goubourn, Executive	
  Director	
  of the	
  Foundation, reported	
  the	
  school has	
  a positive	
  
tone and acknowledged the school’s growth and focus on	
  character integration.	
  

Finance & Operations	
  Committee
Sandra	
  J.	
  DuPree,	
  Executive Director reported on that recruitment efforts for the 2015 -­‐
2016
school year	
  are	
  underway.	
  

A new Bill pay system	
  has been implemented to expedite and streamline our bill payment
process.	
  

Nominating	
  Committee
No report at this time.

Meeting	
  adjourned at 7:55 p.m.

Next meeting will be held on Monday, January	
  25, 2016 at Hyde Leadership	
  Charter School	
  
– Brooklyn, 330 Alabama Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11207 at 6:30p.m.



Summary	
  of JANUARYMeeting
Of the Board of Trustees

Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn
APPROVED

Held at Hyde Leadership Charter School -­‐ Brooklyn
33 Alabama Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11205

January 25, 2016

Trustees Present: Trustee Absent:
Cecil Simpson, Jr., Chair Latisha	
  Green, Parent Representative
Joanne	
  Goubourn Cicily Robinson, Treasurer*
Jack Brown, III, Vice Chair Christina Brown*
Claire Robinson

Attendees:
Sandra	
  J. DuPree, Ed.D., Executive Director Jack Foster, II – Financial Consultant*
Rebecca Chatteram, Director of Operations Christine	
  Forbes, Head of School

Called	
  to	
  order by Chair at 6:35 p.m.

Action Items
APPROVE October and November Minutes

Motion by: Joanne Goubourn
Seconded by: Claire Robinson
Action: Approved unanimously

APPROVE December Minutes

Motion by: Joanne Goubourn
Seconded by: Jack Brown, III
Action: Approved unanimously

Officer and Committee Reports

Education	
  Committee
Joanne Goubourn reported no new action items to present to the BOT for consideration and no
report at this	
  time.

Finance Committee
Jack Foster, Finance Consultant reported no new action items to present to the BOT for
consideration and no report at this time.

Nominating Committee
Jack Brown, III reported no new action items to present to the BOT for consideration and no report
at this time.



  

School-­‐At-­‐Large Education Report
Dr. Sandra DuPree, Executive Director reported no new action items to present to the BOT for
consideration at this time. Dr. DuPree noted that the Executive Leadership Team recently attended
an FLC	
  at Hyde School in Bath, Maine. The three-­‐day weekend	
  was an	
  opportunity to	
  reflect, while
gathering	
  ideas and inspiration for HLCSB family	
  program.

In wrapping up the 2nd Quarter on Friday, January 29th, the overall pulse of the school is positive.
Teachers are still engaged and focused on instruction, but continuous support is needed	
   to	
  move
teachers and students performance. Faculty/staff remain willing to go beyond to assist	
   students
and be involved in the school.

In an effort	
  to capture student perceptions of school culture, climate and programming, a student
survey was	
   administered by the Dean of Students	
   Life and	
   Culture to students	
   in grades 3 – 5.
Those surveys are being processed and we will share those results at	
  the next	
  meeting.

We continue to	
   struggle with	
  parent participation in monthly	
  Parent Discovery	
  Night. The most
recent Parent-­‐Teacher Conferences yielded participation	
  rate of 72%, but a significant drop	
  at 36%
for the monthly meetings. Beginning this month, we will	
  offer make-­‐up	
  sessions for parents – who
have scheduling conflicts, follow-­‐up	
  with parents who have still not attended a session. There has
to be additional resources put	
   into our parent	
  program to really bring about	
   the kind of shift	
  we
would like to see in participation.

Afterschool programming continues to thrive. There are roughly 110 students participating in	
  
afterschool tutoring	
   in math and reading. HLCSB has partnered with LEAP (Learning through an
Expanded Arts Program)	
  to facilitate the afterschool chess program. Fifteen 2nd grade students are
currently enrolled in the program.

Faculty	
  Intent to	
  Return Forms has been	
  distributed and are being returned with positive
feedback.

Education Report:
Christine Forbes, Head	
  of School reported	
  current student performance data from recent Fountas &
Pinnell Reading Assessments.

Mrs. Forbes shared student performance growth data across Grades 1 – 5 from November 2015 –
January 2016.

ANET Interim 2 Data was shared for ELA	
  and Math by grade and class. Overall performance data
for Math for ANET Interim was reported	
  as:

A1 A1 A1 A2 A2 A2
Below Level

50%
On Level
50-­‐60%

Above Level
60%+

Below Level-­‐
60%

On Level
60-­‐70%

Above Level
70%+

50% 20% 30% 77% 12% 10%

Overall performance data for ELA for ANET Interim 2 was reported as:

Level K 1 2 3 4 5 School-­‐
wide

4 33% 55% 32% 36% 49% 41%
3 31% 7% 11% 7% 7% 13%
2 13% 20% 27% 15% 5% 16%
1 23% 19% 30% 42% 39% 31%

On or
above

64% 62% 48% 43% 56% 54%

Below 36% 39% 52% 57% 44% 47%



A1 A1 A1 A2 A2 A2
Below Level

50%
On Level 50-­‐

60%
Above Level

60%+
Below Level

60%
On Level
60-­‐70%

Above Level
70%+

37% 19% 44% 63% 14% 23%

MOVED to adjourn meeting.

Motion by: Joanne Goubourn
Second by: Jack Brown, III
Action: Meeting Adjourned

Meeting adjourned at 7:44 p.m.

Next meeting will be held on Monday, February 22, 2016 at Hyde Leadership Charter School –
Brooklyn,	
  330 Alabama Avenue,	
  Brooklyn,	
  NY 11207 at 6:30p.m.



Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn
Board of Trustees FEBRUARYMeeting Summary

APPROVED
Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn

330 Alabama Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11205

February	
  22, 2016

Trustees Present: Trustees Absent:
Cecil Simpson, Jr., Chair, Cicily Robinson, Treasurer
Joanne Goubourn* Latisha	
  Green, Parent Representative
Jack Brown, III, Vice Chair*, Christina Brown
Claire Robinson

Attendees:
Sandra	
  J. DuPree, Ed.D., Executive Director
Jack Foster, II, Director of	
  Finance Consultant
Christine Forbes, Head	
  of School

Called	
  to	
  order by trustee member	
  at 6:40 PM

Action Items

TABLED, December and January	
  Board Minutes

Motion by: Cecil Simpson, Jr.
Seconded by: Joanne Goubourn
Action: Approved unanimously

OFFICER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

Chairman’s Report
No report at this time.

School-­‐At-­‐Large	
  Report
Dr. DuPree reported that today marks the first day of school following the mid-­‐winter break and the
100th day of school for students.

Prior to the mid-­‐winter break, HLCSB held Parent-­‐Teacher Conferences for the 2nd Quarter to
discuss student performance and	
  to	
  distribute report cards.

HLCSB had 215 parents participate in the conferences (371), which is roughly	
  57% of our families.
Participation	
  was down	
   from 1st Quarter by 16%; participation rate was 73%. Although overall
participation	
  was down, across all grade levels with the exception	
  of 1st grade who	
  maintained a
64% participation	
  rate.



 

 

 

 

             
             
                 

           
                

     
          

We attribute the low turnout to outreach and the “ebb and flow” of parent participation. Teachers
called families and notices were sent home. In reviewing last year’s participation rate, we notices

an increase in 2nd quarter numbers and	
  a 37% drop in	
  3rd quarter. To	
  avoid	
  such	
  a drop this year,
we will increase our outreach to each family and get students involved in this process.

There 30 days before will take the ELA exam and 36 days before the Math exam, we resumed
afterschool tutoring	
  this week for 122 of our students (74 – ELA; 48 – Math). That’s roughly 33% of
our students receiving	
  additional assistance.

That’s in	
  addition	
  to the additional support given	
  to roughly 99 students across grades 3-­‐5	
  during
Saturday	
  Academy.

By the end	
   of March, we will have 15% of our students participating in	
   afterschool enrichment
activities, including	
  Chess, Step and Rugby.

We are in the process of scheduling our Annual Comprehensive Review with the NYCDOE. We will
reply to their	
  request with few dates for our suggested visit.

Just to have it noted for our records that according to the Preliminary accountability Status effective
February	
  2016 is “Good	
  Standing”

Christine Forbes reviewed	
  student performance data using the Data Feedback	
  Strategy	
  Reporting	
  
Form. ANET -­‐ ELA student performance data for Interim II was presented along with overall
performance, ELA domain	
  and F & Benchmark	
  data. The data showed the following:

•	 37% of students in	
   grades 2 – 5 performed	
   at 60% or above on the ANET A2. 63% of
students	
  in grades	
  2 – performed	
  below the internal 60% benchmark	
  o the ANET A2.

•	 Although more than 50% of students in grades 2 -­‐5	
   continue to	
   score below level, the
HLCSB network outperformed the ANET network in all ELA Domains by an average of 15%.

•	 In comparison to ANET A1 performance, 2nd grade student performance < by	
  6%, 3rd grade
> 11%, 4th grade < 8% and 5th grade < by	
  5%.

• Overall, students in grades 2-­‐ 5 outperformed	
  the ANET Network	
  in	
  ELA by 5%.

Mrs. Forbes reported Math ANET	
  Interim II data, overall performance and domain	
  data. The data
showed the following:

•	 23% of students in grades 2 – 5 performed at 60% or above on the ANET A2. 
•	 77% of students in grades 2 – 5 performed below the internal 60% benchmark on the ANET A2. 
•	 Although students in grades 2 -5 continue to score below 50% in three of the four - Math domain, 

students performed above the network cohort by an average of 4%. 
•	 In comparison ANET A1 performance, 2nd grade student performance < by 6%, 3rd grade > 11%, 

4th grade < 1% . 
•	 Overall, students in grades 2- 5 outperformed the ANET Network by 3%.

Education	
  Committee
On behalf of the Education Committee, Joanne Goubourn reported the Education Committee met to
discuss strategy of the committee, student data and	
  developed	
   the new reporting	
   tool. The new
reporting tool [Data Feedback Strategy Reporting Form] captures information in a comprehensive,
yet easy	
  to	
  follow form.

The Education	
  Committee will continue to meet and forward minutes out accordingly.

Finance Operations Committee
Jack Foster, II, Director of	
  Finance consultant reported on current financials. The school	
  is in strong
financial	
  standing.



January financials will	
  be completed by week’s end. HLCSB’s Form 990 has been completed.

Sandra	
  DuPree and Jack Foster have begun the 2016 -­‐ 2017 budget process. The goal is to	
  have a
draft to	
  the committee for review in	
  the coming weeks.

Nominating Committee
Jack Brown, III, Chair of	
   the nominating committee reported that the nominating committee will
meet in the coming weeks, but has preliminarily discussed the need to expand the board and the
need	
   for a full board	
   assessment prior to expansion. The committee will look	
   at developing
marketing material to support the recruitment of board members.

MOVED to adjourn meeting.

Motion by: Joanne Goubourn
Second by: Jack Brown, III
Action: Meeting Adjourned

Meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m.

Next meeting will be held on Monday, March 21, 2016 at Hyde Leadership Charter School –
Brooklyn, 330 Alabama	
  Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11207 at 6:30p.m.



 

   

 

Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn
Board of TrusteesMARCHMeeting Summary

Pending Approval
Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn

330 Alabama Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11205

March 21, 2916

Trustees Present: Trustees Absent:
Cecil Simpson, Jr., Chair, Cicily Robinson, Treasurer
Joanne Goubourn* Latisha	
  Green, Parent Representative
Jack Brown, III, Vice Chair*,
Claire Robinson
Christina Brown

Attendees:
Sandra	
  J. DuPree, Ed.D., Executive Director

Called	
  to	
  order by trustee member at 7:00	
  PM

Action Items

TABLED, January,	
  February Board Minutes

In accordance with Section 105 (1)(f) of the Open Meetings Law, the Board of Trustees moved 
to an executive session, for the purpose of discussing the medical, financial, credit or 
employment history of a particular person or corporation, or matters leading to the appointment, 
employment, promotion, demotion, discipline, suspension, dismissal or removal of a particular 
person or corporation. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:00 p.m.

Next meeting will be held on Monday, April 18, 2016 at Hyde Leadership Charter School –
Brooklyn, 330 Alabama Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11207 at 6:30p.m.



	
  

Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn
Board of Trustees APRILMeeting	
  Summary

APPROVED
Hyde Leadership Charter School – Brooklyn

330 Alabama Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11205

April 18, 2016

Trustees Present: Trustees Absent:
Cecil Simpson, Jr., Chair* Cicily Robinson, Treasurer
Joanne Goubourn* Jack Brown, III, Vice Chair
Latisha	
  Green, Parent Representative Christina Brown
Claire Robinson

Attendees:
Sandra	
  J. DuPree, Ed.D., Executive Director

Called	
  to	
  order by Trustee member	
  at 6:45	
  PM

Action Items

TABLED, January,	
  February and March Board Minutes

OFFICER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

Chairman’s Report
No report at this time.

School-­‐At-­‐Large	
  Report
Dr. DuPree reported that overall climate is positive. Teachers continue to work hard in maintaining
routines. As	
  a school community, we	
  are	
  revisiting	
  routines and procedures to	
  support students
here is a school-­‐wide.

We have concluded ELA and Math State Exams for grades 3 – 5. Students in	
  grade 4 will participate
in the Math Field Test May 23rd – May 24th. In addition,	
  4th grade students	
  will take the Science
Exam May 25th – 29th

The school will close for Sprint Break April 25th – 29th 2016.	
  

Student recruitment is heavily	
  underway. The 2016 – 201 lottery was held	
  o April 8, 2016.

That’s in	
  addition	
  to the additional support given to roughly 99 students across grades 3 – 5
during Saturday Academy.

By the end of March, we will have 15% of our students participating in afterschool enrichment
activities, including	
  Chess, Step and Rugby.
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We are in the process of scheduling our Annual Comprehensive Review with	
  the NYCDOE. We will
reply to their	
  request with a few dates	
  for	
  our	
  suggested visit.

Just to have it noted for our records that according to the Preliminary accountability Status effective
February	
  2016 is “Good	
  Standing”

Christine Forbes reviewed	
   past student performance data using the Data Feedback Strategy
Reporting Form. ANET -­‐ ELA student performance data for Interim II was presented along with
overall performance, ELA domain and	
   & P Benchmark data. The data showed the following:

•	 37% of students in	
   grades 2 – 5 performed	
   at 60% or above on the ANET A2. 63% of
students	
  in grades	
  2 – performed	
  below the internal 60% benchmark	
  o the ANET A2.

•	 Although more than 50% of students in grades 2 -­‐5	
   continue to score below level, the
HLCSB network outperformed the ANET network in all ELA Domains by an average of 15%.

•	 In comparison to ANET A1 performance, 2nd grade student performance < by	
  6%, 3rd grade
> 11%, 4th grade < 8% and 5th grade < by	
  5%.

• Overall, students	
  in grades	
  2-­‐ 5 outperformed	
  the ANET Network	
  in	
  ELA by 5%.

Mrs. Forbes reported Math ANET Interim	
  II data, overall performance and domain data. The data
showed the following:

•	 23% of students in grades 2 – 5 performed at 60% or above on the ANET A2. 
•	 77% of students in grades 2 – 5 performed below the internal 60% benchmark on the ANET A2. 
•	 Although students in grades 2 -5 continue to score below 50% in three of the four - Math domain, 

students performed above the network cohort by an average of 4%. 
•	 In comparison ANET A1 performance, 2nd grade student performance < by 6%, 3rd grade > 11%, 

4th grade < 1%. 
•	 Overall, students in grades 2- 5 outperformed the ANET Network by 3%.

Education	
  Committee
Dr. DuPree reported on the behalf of the Education Committee summarizing the minutes noted to
the Trustees.

Finance & Operations Committee
No Report at this time.

Nominating Committee
No Report at this time.

MOVED to adjourn meeting.

Motion by: Sandra	
  J. DuPree
Second by: Latisha	
  Green
Action: Meeting Adjourned

Meeting adjourned at 7:50	
  p.m.

Next meeting will be held on Monday, May 16, 2016, 2016 at Hyde Leadership Charter School –
Brooklyn, 330 Alabama Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 1120 at 6:30	
  PM
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Summary	
  of	
  MAY	
  Meeting	
  
Of	
  the	
  Board	
  of	
  Trustees	
  

	
  
Hyde	
  Leadership	
  Charter	
  School	
  –	
  Brooklyn	
  

APPROVED	
  
Held	
  at	
  Hyde	
  Leadership	
  Charter	
  School	
  -­‐	
  Brooklyn	
  

330	
  Alabama	
  Avenue	
  	
  
Brooklyn,	
  NY	
  11205	
  

	
  
May	
  16,	
  2016	
  

	
  
Trustees	
  Present:	
   	
   	
   	
   	
   Trustee	
  Absent:	
  
Cecil	
  Simpson,	
  Jr.,	
  Chair*	
   	
   	
   	
   Latisha	
  Green,	
  Parent	
  Representative	
  
Joanne	
  Goubourn*	
   	
   	
   	
   	
   Cicily	
  Robinson,	
  Treasurer*	
  
Jack	
  Brown,	
  III,	
  Vice	
  Chair*	
   	
   	
   	
   Christina	
  Brown*	
  
Claire	
  Robinson*	
  
Sandra	
  J.	
  DuPree,	
  Ed.D.,	
  Executive	
  Director	
   	
  
	
  	
  
Called	
  to	
  order	
  by	
  Chair	
  at	
  6:30	
  p.m.	
  	
  
	
  

Action	
  Items	
  
	
  

APPROVE,	
  January,	
  February,	
  March,	
  April	
  Minutes	
  	
  
	
   	
  
Motion	
  by:	
   	
  	
   Jack	
  Brown,	
  III	
  
Seconded	
  by:	
   	
  	
   Claire	
  Robinson	
  	
  	
  
Action:	
  	
   	
  	
   Approved	
  unanimously	
  	
  	
  
	
  

Officer	
  and	
  Committee	
  Reports	
  
	
  

Chairman’s	
  Report	
  
The	
  HLCSB	
  Board	
  of	
  Trustees	
  will	
  begin	
  working	
  on	
  restructuring	
  for	
  the	
  SY2016	
  –	
  2017.	
  	
  All	
  board	
  
related	
  documents	
  will	
  be	
  reviewed	
  and	
  revised.	
  
	
  
Education	
  Committee	
  
No	
  report	
  at	
  this	
  time.	
  	
  	
  
	
  
Finance	
  Committee	
  
No	
  report	
  at	
  this	
  time.	
  
	
  
Nominating	
  Committee	
  	
  
Joanne	
   Goubourn	
   reports	
   that	
   the	
   nominating	
   committee	
  will	
   review	
   the	
   recruitment	
   and	
   interview	
  
process	
   for	
   new	
   board	
   members.	
   	
   The	
   committee	
   will	
   present	
   the	
   process	
   for	
   review	
   at	
   the	
   next	
  
meeting.	
   	
  The	
  nominating	
  committee	
  will	
  disseminate	
  an	
  annual	
  board	
  survey	
   to	
  assess	
  performance	
  
and	
  needed	
  skills.	
  	
  
	
  
School-­‐At-­‐Large	
  
Dr.	
   Sandra	
   DuPree,	
   Executive	
   Director	
   provided	
   an	
   update	
   on	
   curricular	
   pilots	
   that	
   are	
   currently	
  
underway	
  in	
  Quarter	
  4	
  as	
  well	
  as	
  Assessments	
  and	
  State	
  Science	
  Exams	
  (F&P,	
  ANET,	
  Terra	
  Nova	
  and	
  
State),	
  which	
  will	
  measure	
  student	
  growth	
  and	
  determine	
  summer	
  school	
  programming.	
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HLCSB	
  students	
  will	
  participate	
  in	
  several	
  end-­‐of-­‐year	
  activities	
  in	
  the	
  coming	
  weeks,	
  including	
  a	
  Week-­‐
of-­‐the-­‐Arts,	
   guest	
   speakers,	
   5th	
   grade	
   Ramapo,	
   Field	
   Day,	
   Kindergarten	
   Stepping	
   Up	
   and	
   5th	
   grade	
  
Banquet	
  (June	
  23rd	
  at	
  5:30	
  PM	
  at	
  Woodhaven	
  Manor.	
  
	
  
Dr.	
  DuPree	
  discussed	
   the	
   increase	
   in	
   focus	
  on	
   the	
  parent	
  program	
  to	
   include	
  a	
  various	
  workshops	
   in	
  
addition	
   to	
  Discovery	
  Nights	
   to	
   increase	
   participation	
   and	
   impact.	
   	
   Although	
  HLCSB	
  has	
   seen	
   a	
   24%	
  
increase	
  in	
  PTC	
  participation	
  in	
  2015-­‐2016	
  school	
  year,	
  parent	
  participation	
  at	
  monthly	
  parent	
  nights	
  
are	
  declining.	
  	
  
	
  
Recent	
  new	
  hires	
  to	
  the	
  HLCSB	
  staff	
  were	
  the	
  Data	
  Analyst	
  and	
  an	
  HR	
  Manager.	
  	
  They	
  both	
  have	
  jumped	
  
him	
  and	
  began	
  collaborating	
  with	
  the	
  team	
  on	
  current	
  and	
  future	
  projects.	
  
	
  
MOVED,	
  to	
  adjourn	
  meeting.	
  
	
  
Motion	
  by:	
  	
   Joanne	
  Goubourn	
  
Second	
  by:	
  	
   Sandra	
  J.	
  DuPree	
  
Action:	
  	
   Meeting	
  Adjourned	
  
	
  
Meeting	
  adjourned	
  at	
  8:05	
  p.m.	
  	
  
	
  
Next	
  meeting	
  will	
  be	
  held	
  on	
  Monday,	
   June	
  20,	
  2016	
  at	
  Hyde	
  Leadership	
  Charter	
  School	
  –	
  Brooklyn,	
  
330	
  Alabama	
  Avenue,	
  Brooklyn,	
  NY	
  11207	
  at	
  6:30p.m.	
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Summary	
  of	
  JUNE	
  Meeting	
  
Of	
  the	
  Board	
  of	
  Trustees	
  

	
  
Hyde	
  Leadership	
  Charter	
  School	
  –	
  Brooklyn	
  

APPROVED	
  
Held	
  at	
  Hyde	
  Leadership	
  Charter	
  School	
  -­‐	
  Brooklyn	
  

330	
  Alabama	
  Avenue	
  	
  
Brooklyn,	
  NY	
  11205	
  

	
  
June	
  20,	
  2016	
  

	
  
Trustees	
  Present:	
   	
   	
   	
   	
   Trustee	
  Absent:	
  
Cecil	
  Simpson,	
  Jr.,	
  Chair	
  	
   	
   	
   	
   Latisha	
  Green,	
  Parent	
  Representative	
  
Joanne	
  Goubourn	
  	
   	
   	
   	
   	
   Cicily	
  Robinson,	
  Treasurer	
  
Jack	
  Brown,	
  III,	
  Vice	
  Chair*	
   	
   	
   	
   	
  
Christina	
  Brown*	
  
Claire	
  Robinson	
  	
  
Sandra	
  J.	
  DuPree,	
  Ed.D.,	
  Executive	
  Director	
   	
  
	
  
Called	
  to	
  order	
  by	
  Chair	
  at	
  6:45	
  p.m.	
  	
  
	
  

Action	
  Items	
  
	
  

APPROVE,	
  May	
  Minutes	
  	
  	
  
	
   	
  
Motion	
  by:	
   	
  	
   Cecil	
  Simpson,	
  Jr.	
  	
  	
  
Seconded	
  by:	
   	
  	
   	
  Joanne	
  Goubourn	
  
Action:	
  	
   	
  	
   Approved	
  unanimously	
  	
  	
  
	
  

Officer	
  and	
  Committee	
  Reports	
  
	
  

Chairman’s	
  Report	
  
No	
  report	
  at	
  this	
  time	
  
	
  
Education	
  Committee	
  
On	
  behalf	
  of	
  the	
  Education	
  Committee,	
  Dr.	
  DuPree	
  reported	
  Q4	
  data	
  for	
  Fountas	
  &	
  Pinnell,	
  Math	
  and	
  
ELA	
  ANET	
  scores.	
   	
  State	
  ELA	
  and	
  Math	
  preliminary	
  scores	
   for	
  grades	
  3	
   -­‐	
  5	
  were	
  reported	
  with	
   final	
  
proficiency	
  rates	
  expected	
  in	
  August.	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
	
  
Dr.	
  DuPree	
  elaborated	
  on	
  plans	
  for	
  Summer	
  School	
  programming,	
  which	
  will	
  includes	
  a	
  pilot	
  program	
  
for	
  entering	
  Kindergarten	
  students.	
  	
  	
  
	
  
School-­‐At-­‐Large	
  
Dr.	
  Sandra	
  DuPree,	
  Executive	
  Director	
  provided	
  an	
  update	
  on	
  the	
  closing	
  days	
  of	
  school	
  and	
  year	
  end	
  
events	
  including	
  the	
  Kindergarten	
  Stepping	
  -­‐Up	
  and	
  the	
  5th	
  Grade	
  Banquet.	
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Nominating	
  Committee	
  
No	
  report	
  at	
  this	
  time	
  
	
  
Finance	
  Committee	
  
Jack	
  Foster,	
  Finance	
  Consultant	
  reported	
  on	
  HLCSB	
  current	
  financial	
  health.	
  	
  	
  Mr.	
  Foster	
  clarified	
  that	
  
HLCSB	
  experienced	
  significant	
  decreases	
  in	
  enrollment	
  causing	
  a	
  significant	
  impact	
  on	
  the	
  budget.	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
	
  
Further	
  discussion	
  and	
  analysis	
  will	
  be	
  shared	
  during	
  the	
  Finance	
  Committee	
  meeting	
  on	
  Friday,	
  June	
  
24th	
  at	
  7:00	
  PM.	
  	
  
	
  
MOVED,	
  to	
  adjourn	
  meeting.	
  
	
  
Motion	
  by:	
  	
   Joanne	
  Goubourn	
  
Second	
  by:	
  	
   Sandra	
  J.	
  DuPree	
  
Action:	
  	
   Meeting	
  Adjourned	
  
	
  
Meeting	
  adjourned	
  at	
  8:15	
  PM.	
  	
  
	
  
Next	
   meeting	
   will	
   be	
   held	
   on	
  Monday,	
   July	
   18,	
   2016	
   at	
   The	
   New	
   York	
   City	
   Charter	
   Center,	
   111	
  
Broadway,	
  Suite	
  111	
  	
  	
  NY,	
  NY	
  	
  

	
  
	
  



	
  
Appendix	
  H:	
  	
  

	
  
SY	
  2015-­‐2016	
  Enrollment	
  and	
  Retention	
  Efforts	
  

	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  

	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
   	
  
	
  

Hyde	
  Leadership	
  Charter	
  School	
  –	
  Brooklyn	
  (“HLCSB”)	
  is	
  located	
  in	
  Community	
  School	
  District	
  19	
  CSD	
  19)	
  
within	
   the	
  East	
  New	
  York	
   section	
  of	
  Brooklyn.	
   	
  During	
   the	
  2015	
   	
   -­‐	
  2016	
   school	
   year,	
  Hyde	
  Leadership	
  
Charter	
  School	
  –	
  Brooklyn	
  utilized	
  a	
  myriad	
  of	
   strategies	
   to	
  attract	
  and	
   retain	
  a	
  greater	
  enrollment	
  of	
  
Students	
   with	
   Disabilities,	
   Limited	
   English	
   Proficiency	
   and	
   Students	
   who	
   are	
   eligible	
   for	
   Free	
   and	
  
Reduced	
  Priced	
  Lunch.	
  	
  In	
  an	
  effort	
  to	
  meet	
  enrollment	
  and	
  retention	
  targets,	
  Hyde	
  Leadership	
  Charter	
  
School	
  –	
  Brooklyn	
  secured	
  assistance	
  from	
  Vanguard	
  for	
  mass	
  mailing	
  to	
  families	
  in	
  and	
  around	
  CSD	
  19.	
  	
  
In	
  addition	
  to	
  our	
  work	
  with	
  Vanguard,	
  our	
  recruitment	
  efforts	
  also	
  included	
  the	
  following:	
  
	
  

• Distribution	
   of	
   applications,	
   brochures	
   and	
   postcards	
   in	
   CSD19	
   in	
   English	
   and	
   translated	
   in	
  
Spanish.	
  

• A	
  revamped	
  website	
  that	
  translates	
  information	
  into	
  multiple	
  languages,	
  serves	
  to	
  assist	
  families	
  
in	
  accessing	
  pertinent	
  information.	
  

• HLCSB	
   participated	
   of	
   Open	
   House	
   sessions	
   at	
   area	
   day	
   care	
   programs	
   to	
  meet	
   families	
   and	
  
recruit	
  incoming	
  Kindergarten	
  students.	
  	
  

• HLCSB	
   participated	
   in	
   the	
   Common	
   Charter	
   Application	
   to	
   provide	
   an	
   opportunity	
   to	
   more	
  
families.	
  	
  	
  

• HLCSB	
   hosted	
   a	
   series	
   of	
   information	
   sessions	
   to	
   families	
   with	
   Spanish	
   and	
   French	
   language	
  
interpretation	
  for	
  attendees.	
  	
  	
  

	
  
In	
  2015	
  –	
  2016	
  school	
  year,	
  HLCSB	
  received	
  1,029	
  applications	
  for	
  108	
  available	
  seats	
  for	
  Grades	
  K	
  –	
  5.	
  	
  	
  
As	
  determined	
  by	
  New	
  York	
  State	
  Education	
  Department	
   (NYSED),	
   the	
  2015	
  –	
  2016	
   target	
   for	
  a	
  K	
  –	
  5	
  
school	
   with	
   enrollment	
   of	
   369	
   was	
   as	
   follows:	
   (1)	
   Free	
   or	
   Reduced	
   Priced	
   Lunch	
   –	
   84%,	
   (2)	
   Limited	
  
English	
  Proficiency	
  (LEP)	
  –	
  13%,	
  and	
  (3)	
  Students	
  with	
  Disabilities	
  (SWD)	
  –	
  16%.	
  	
  Although	
  there	
  was	
  an	
  
increase	
   in	
   enrollment	
   of	
   LEP	
   and	
   SWD’s,	
  HLCSB	
   enrolled	
   below	
   the	
   FRPL	
   target	
   by	
   8%	
   and	
   the	
   SWD	
  
target	
  by	
  5%.	
  However,	
  HLCSB	
  successfully	
  met	
  the	
  LEP	
  target	
  of	
  13%.	
  	
  	
  
	
  
In	
  an	
  effort	
  to	
  reach	
  target	
  in	
  the	
  2016	
  –	
  2017	
  school	
  year,	
  Hyde	
  Leadership	
  Charter	
  School	
  –	
  Brooklyn	
  
will	
  continue	
  to	
  focus	
  its	
  efforts	
  at	
  the	
  onset,	
  which	
  include	
  information	
  sessions	
  that	
  appeal	
  to	
  bilingual	
  
families,	
  home	
  language	
  surveys,	
  assessments	
  and	
  services	
  conducted	
  by	
  a	
  dedicated	
  ELL	
  Coordinator.	
  	
  
Additionally,	
  we	
  will	
  continue	
  to	
  work	
  with	
  families,	
  teachers	
  and	
  the	
  Committee	
  on	
  Special	
  Education	
  
to	
   identify	
   and	
   support	
   students	
   who	
   require	
   additional	
   assistance	
   through	
   modifications	
   and	
  
accommodations.	
  

0	
  

50	
  

100	
  

150	
  

200	
  

250	
  

300	
  

350	
  

FRPL	
   LEP	
   SWD	
  

84%	
  

13%	
  
16%	
  

76%	
  	
  

13%	
   11%	
  

Target	
  

Hyde	
  	
  



1	of	1

Entry	12	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition
Last	updated:	07/25/2016

Report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing.

Page	1

Instructions	for	completing	the	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition	Tables
The	following	tables	reflect	formatting	in	the	online	portal	required	for	Regents
authorized	charter	schools.		Schools	should	provide,	for	teachers	and
administrators	only,	the	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	of	staff	on	June	30,	2015;	the
FTE	for	added	staff	from	July	1,	2015	through	June	30,	2016;	and	the	FTE	for	any
departed	staff	from	July	1,	2015	through	June	30,	2016	using	the	two	tables
provided.

2015-16	Teacher	Attrition	Table

FTE	Teachers	on
June	30,	2015

FTE	Teachers
Departed
7/1/15	–
6/30/16

FTE	Teachers
Filling	Vacant
Positions	7/1/15
–	6/30/16

FTE	Teachers
Added	in	New
Positions
7/1/15-6/30/16

FTE	of	Teachers
on	June	30,
2016

40 12 12 5 45

2015-16	Administrator	Position	Attrition	Table

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
June	30,	2015

FTE
Administrators
Departed
7/1/15	–
6/30/16

FTE
Administrators
Filling	Vacant
Positions	7/1/15
–	6/30/16

FTE
Administrators
Added	in	New
Positions
7/1/15-6/30/16

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
June	30,	2016

9 1 1 1 10
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The	table	below	is	reflective	of	the	information	collected	through	the	online
portal	for	compliance	with	New	York	State	Education	Law	2854(3)(a-1)	for
teaching	staff	qualifications.	Enter	the	relevant	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	count
of	teachers	in	each	column.		For	example,	a	school	with	20	full	time	teachers	and
5	half	time	teachers	would	have	an	FTE	count	of	22.5.	If	more	than	one	column
applies	to	a	particular	teacher,	please	select	one	column	for	the	FTE	count.

Staff	Qualifications	(June	30,	2016)	
Note:	Columns	should	sum	to	the	FTE	count	of	Teachers	on	June	30,	2016,	and	each
teacher	should	be	in	only	one	column.

1.	Total	FTE	Count	of	Uncertified	Teachers	(6-30-16) 9

2.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teacher	with	at	least
three	years	of	elementary,	middle	or	secondary
classroom	teaching	experience	(6-30-16)

5

3.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	are	tenured
or	tenure	track	college	faculty	(6-30-16) 0

4.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	two	years
of	Teach	for	America	experience	(6-30-16) 0

5.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	exceptional
business,	professional,	artistic,	athletic,	or	military
experience	(6-30-16)

0

6.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	do	not	fit
into	any	of	the	prior	four	categories	(6-30-16) 0

Thank	you.



	
  Hyde	
  Leadership	
  Charter	
  School	
  –	
  Brooklyn	
   	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  2015	
  –	
  2016	
  



        2016-2017 Master Calendar 
!
 

 

 

AUGUST 2016 
S M T W Th F S 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31    
 

1     New Hire HR/Benefits 
2-4 Hyde Woodstock PD 
15 – 26 Professional Dev. 
29 – 31 Classroom Setup 

 

 2-3         Parent-Teacher  
              Conferences 
3             ½ Day; 12:30 P.M.Dismissal 
8            100th Day of School 
17           ½ Day; 12:30 P.M.Dismissal 
20-24      No School; Mid- 
               Winter Recess 
27           Students Return to  
               School 

FEBRUARY 2017 
S M T W Th F S 

   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28     
 

     
SEPTEMBER 2016 

S M T W Th F S 

    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30  
 

1-2  Hyde Closed 
5     Labor Day; School Closed 
6     First Day of School;   
       12:30 P.M. Dismissal 
22   Back to School Night 
       5:00 P.M. – 6:30 P.M. 
23   ½ Day; 12:30 P.M. Dismissal 

 16        Parent Discovery Night 
            5:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. 
17        ½ Day; 12:30 P.M. Dismissal 
27-31  NYS ELA Exam Grd. 3, 4 & 5 

MARCH 2017 
S M T W Th F S 

   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  
 

     
OCTOBER 2016 

S M T W Th F S 

      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31      
 

7     ½ Day; 12:30 P.M.  Dismissal  
10   No School; Columbus Day 
20   Parent Discovery Night 
       5:00 P.M. – 6:30 P.M. 
21   ½ Day; 12:30 P.M. Dismissal 

 10-14   No School; Spring Break 
17     Students Return to School 
            Quarter 4 Begins 
20-21   Parent-Teacher  
             Conferences 
21         ½ Day; 12:30 P.M. Dismissal 

APRIL 2017 
S M T W Th F S 

      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30       
 

     
NOVEMBER 2016 

S M T W Th F S 

  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30     
 

5     Fall Family Day 
       10:00 A.M. – 12:00 P.M.          
8     Election Day; No School for  
       Students 
11   No School; Veterans Day 
14   Quarter 2 Begins 
17-18 Parent Teacher Conf. 
18   ½ Day; 12:30 P.M. Dismissal 
23   ½ Day; 12:30 P.M. Dismissal 
24-25 Thanksgiving Holiday 
28   Students Return to School 
 

 1-5     NYS Math Exam Grd. 3, 4 & 5 
12      ½ Day; 12:30 Dismissal 
24-31 NYS Science  
          Performance Exam Grd. 4 
29      No School; Memorial Day 

MAY 2017 
S M T W Th F S 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31    
 

     
DECEMBER 2016 

S M T W Th F S 

    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 
 

9    ½ Day; 12:30 P.M. Dismissal 
10  Holiday Party 
23 ½ Day; 12:30 P.M. Dismissal 
26-30  No School; Holiday Break 

 

 1-2   NYS Science  
        Performance Exam Grd. 4 
5      NYS Science Written Exam  
        Grd. 4 
8      No School; Chancellor’s Day 
9      Field Day 
12    Kindergarten Stepping Up  
15    5th Gr. Banquet 
20    Last Day of School; 
        12:30 P.M. Dismissal 
22    Last Day for Teachers 

JUNE 2017 
S M T W Th F S 

    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30  
 

     
JANUARY 2017 

S M T W Th F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31     

       
 

2   No School; Holiday Break 
3   Students Return to School 
16  No School; M.L. King Day 
19  Parent Discovery Night 
      5:00 P.M. – 6:30 P.M. 
20  ½ Day; 12:30 P.M. Dismissal 
30  Quarter 3 Begins 

 NO SCHOOL 
 
 
EARLY DISMISSAL (12:30 
P.M.) 
 
PARENT DISCOVERY 
NIGHT 

 
NYS EXAMS 

NO SCHOOL FOR 
STUDENTS 

 
STUDENTS RETURN TO 
SCHOOL 
 
PARENT-TEACHER 
CONFERENCES 

 
STEPPING UP EXERCISES 
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